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INDEPENDENT AUDETOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(FORMERLY, “5AUD] INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial stalements of Sustained Infrastructure Holding Company {formerly, "Saudi
Industrial Services Company™) {“the Company™), and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Greup™), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3¥ December 2024, and the conselidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprechensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders®
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then cnded, and noles 10 the consolidated financial
statements. including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, im all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [FRS Accounting Standards that ere endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standirds and pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi Creanization for
Chartered and Professional Accountants ("SOCPA™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (‘15As™) that arc endorsed in the
Kingdom ol Saudi Arabia. Qur responsibililies under those siandards are further described in the *Auditor’s
Responsibilitios for the dudit of the Consolidated financial Statemenis " section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Profossional Accountants (including Intemational
Independence Standards) that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that is relevant to gur audit of the financial
statcments, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with that Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bagis for pur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judpment, were of most significance in our audil of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. Thess matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming auditor's opinion thereon, and we do nul provide 3 separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, cur description of how our audil addressed Lthe matter is provided in
that conext.

We bave {ulfilled the responsibitities deseribed in the Auditor’s respongibilitics for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our repor, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to cur assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the consolidaied financial
statements. The resulis of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed 1o address the maners below,
provide the basis for our audit opinivn on the accompanying consolidated financial stalements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUSTAINED INFRASTRGCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(FORMERLY, “SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERYICES COMPANY™)
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

ACCOINTING FOR
ARRANGEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS RELATING TO SERVICE CONCESSION
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The key sudit matter

How the matter was addressed in our zudit

As at 31 December 2024, the camrying value of
Group’s intangible assets amounted to SR 3,583
million (2023: S8R 3,487 million) and the related
amortisalion expense was SR 182 million (2023:
SR 144 million}.

The intangible assets primarily pertain to long-term
port concession arrangements, where the Group is
contracted to develop {or upgrade), operale and
maitiain the concession assats. As the operator, the
Group has a right to charge users for services
rendered. Uhe Group has recognised the concession
arranpement in accordance with the MFRIC {2
Service Concession Arrangements.

Accounting for intangible assets relating to the
concession arrangements involve complexities and
significant judgements refating to recopnition and
meiasurement of the concession arrangement assets
including related  additions, amortisation and
assessment For any intemal or external indicators of
impairment.

Given (1) the significance of the amounts mnvolved

applied 10 determine the value of the imangible
assets and corresponding financial liabilities, for
concession  arrangemen  and  related

a key audit matier.

Concession Ammangement’,  note 4 {or material

of ‘Obligation Under Service

Aprecment’.

and (i) significanl judgments thal management

other
accounting implications, we considered this area as

Refar to note 3 which contains the disclosure of -
significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions relating o ‘Accounting lor Service :

accounting policy information for the “Intangible
Assets’; and “Impairment of Non-financial Assets’; |
notc & which contains the disclosurc of “Intangible
Assets’; and note 19 which contaings the disclosure ‘
Cloneession

We performed the following audit procedures in relation to
intangible assels relating (0 service CONCESSION arrangemeants:

»

-3

Obtained the service concession agreements and reviewed
ag)

the contracts and related documemation to ensure that the

accounfting for the concession assets comply with the
requirements  of JFRAC 12 Service Concession
Arrangemenis;

Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's accounting
policies including  recognition  and  measurement  of
contract intangible asscts. This included examining
assumptions related o marging during construction phase

and then methods used to estimate the present value of

cancession fees, as well as the useful life and amortisation !
of the concession intangible assets. Wo also lested the |

mathematical accuracy of rzlated models;

Assessed the accounting for any change in terms during
the year and re-evaluated ihe carmying valuc of the
intangible assets 10 ensure accuracy;

Involved our internal specialists to assess the accounting |

treatment and reasonableness of the discount rale used to
determine the present value of thc Obligation Under
Service Concession Agrecments;

Cvaluated the assessment of impairment indicators by !
comparing forecasts to historical experience and applying !

our underslanding of the fulure prospects of the business,
drawing rom both intemnal and external scurces; and

Considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosurcs !
CUTICCSSION  arrangements, |

regarding  the  long-term
ensuring compliance with applicable accounting standards
thal are endoescd in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabiz,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(FORMERLY, *SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A SAUD] JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

Other Matter

‘The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 2023 were audited by ancther auditor
who expressed an unmodifled opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 18 March 2024G, correspending to
¥ Ramadan i445H.

Other [nfermation

Manapement is responsibic lor the other information. The other informalion comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The annual
report is expected o be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial stalements, our responsibitity is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, In doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial staterents of our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears o be
materially misstaled.

When we read the annual report, when made available (o us, if we conelude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance, 1.¢. the Board of Directors.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee far the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting $tandards that arc endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements that are endorsed by the SOCPA., and the provisions of Regulations for Compamcs and Company's By«
luws, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of consclidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ertor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue us 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o poing concemn and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management cither intends te liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altermative but to do so.

Those charged with governance i.e, the Board of Directors is responsible for overseging the Group's tinancial reporting
PTOCesS.

Anditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial statements

Our ohjectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to 18sue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Ruasonahle assurance is @ high level of assurance bul is not 4 guarantee that an audit conducted in aecordance with
Inlemational Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always delect 2 material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considered material it individually or in
the apgrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tuken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statcmems.

As part of an audil in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audic. We also:
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(FORMERLY, “5AUDI INDUSTRIAL SERYICES COMPANY*™)

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial statements (continued)

. Idenuify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the consolidated financial slatements, whether due o fraud
ot error, desipn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material nrisstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrcpresentations, or the override of internal control,

- Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audil procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the effecliveness of the
Group's internal control,

- Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounling and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists relaled to cvents or conditions thal may cast
significant doubl on the Group’s ability 10 continuc a5 a poing concern. 11 we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Cur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease 16 conlinug 9s 4 going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contenl of the consolidated financizl stalements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated fnancial statements represent the underlying ransacifons and evenls in
a manner that achigves fair presentation,

- P'lun and perform the group audit to obtain suflicicnl appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
ol the entities or business units within the Group as a basix for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
staternents. We are Tesponsible for the divection, supervision and review of the audit work perfommed for the
purpeses of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible Tor our avdit opinion.

We communicute with those charged with povernance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlenctes in imernal control that we identily during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasemably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions 1aken to iiminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the eonsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matiers. We describe these mattess in our auditor's repert unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure abuut the
matter or when, in extremely rare circimstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
becavse the adverse consequences of doing 50 would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

for Emst & Young Professional Services

|
-. -
Hussain Salch Asin LML g
Certified Public Accountant g 9P |
License Mo (414} Vmprtipmeiiiaet |

Lo e et Prvhigmeirs] 5o
Chrobnssad 7] J

Jeddah: 18 Ramadan 144611
{18 March 2025G)



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Property, plant and equipment
Work in progress assets
Intangiblc assets
Investment properties
Equity-accounted investees

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVYOCL)
Goodwill
Right-of-use assets
Deferred-tax asset

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Due from related parties
Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables
Short term deposits
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Statitory reserve

Treasury shares

Other components of equity

Retained eamings

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Non-controfling interests
TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Obligation under service concession arrangement
Long-term loans

Employees® end-of-service benefits

Long-tertn provisions

Lease liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT L1ABILITIES

Neles

50 - O

il
12
23
32

13
34
14
15
15

16

17
la

18

14
20
21
22
23

2024 2023
SR SR
245,123,882 256,879,290
125,606,912 203,734,674
3,582,789,169  3,436,787.609
363,262,609 288,619,190
252,064,802 263,225,190
8,549,266 11,586,472
8,776,760 8,776,760
65,990,535 48,637,659
5,705,485 6,057,112
4,657,869,420  4,574,303,956
22,372,341 22,048,792
15,445,125 12,950,389
331,257,772 214,272,502
118,618,268 -
855,073,460 1,166,403,656
1,372,766,966 1.415,677,339
6,030,636,386  5.989,981.295
816,000,000 816,000,000
36,400,063 36,409,063
106,905,167 106,905,167
{6,622,392) (6,622,592)
389,289,121 187,088,914
135,803,516 169,079,592
1,477,784,275 1,508.860,144
929,763,542 305,862,437
2,407,547,817  2,314,722,581
1,542,309,320 1,406,042,609
1,067,969,084 1,198,444,510
45,269,018 49,428,264
2,195,849 2,048,195
111,922,170 95,451,499

2,779,665,441

The aceompaniing notes | to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2,751 415,077




SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of abligation under service concession
arrangement

Current portion of long-term loans

Short term loan

Short-term loans due to related parties

Trade payables, accrucd and other current liabilities
Zakat and income tax payabte

Lease liabilines

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

1%
20

34

3z
23

2024 2023

SR SR
162,744,035 168,953,693
164,180,291 145,169,030

23,664,626 -

- 148,843,578
447,154,062 425,048,844
14,567,295 22,356,447
11,112,819 12,872,045
843,423,128 023,843,637
3,623,088,569 3,675258,714
6,030,636,386 5,989,981,295

The accompanying nates | to 40 form an integral jiart of these consolidated financial statements,

7



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY')
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company |

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes

REVENUE
Revenues from sale of goods and services 25
Construction revenue 26
TOTAL REVENUES
Direct costs 27
Cost of construction 26
COST OF REVENUE
GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and distribution expenses 28
General and administrative expenses 9
Expected credit losses 37
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Finance income
Finance costs 30
Other incotne — net 31l
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net 1¢
PROFIT BEFORE ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
Zakal and income tax charge, net 32
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit / (loss) attributable to:
Sharchelders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
{Loss) / earnings per share:
Bagic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share from net (loss) /

profit for the year attributabie to the Shareholders’ of the

Parent Comipany 33

The accompanting notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.

3

2024 2023

SR SR

1,254, 488,192 1,052,441,593
66,469,102 550,987,528
1,3H1.957,294 1,603,429,121
(613,134,538) (514,307,210)
(66,469,101) (550,987,528)
(679,603,640)  (1,065,294,738)
641,353,654 538,134,383
(11,343,647) (10,911,858}
(249,349,168) (203,986,871
(2,729,564) (3,872,533)
(263,422379)  (218,771,302)
377,931,275 319,363,081
32,886,587 25,867,549
(292,674,991)  (243,803,891)
9,704,397 23,751,090
6,913,696 30,503,809
134,760,964 155,081,638
(61,241,217 (26,606,145)
73,519,747 129,075,493
(741,877) 71,263,083
74,261,624 57,872,410
73,519,747 129,075,453
(01) 0.87
:__,—l. e — —



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

IA Saudi Joint Stock Company |

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes

FROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fiens that will not be reclassified io profit or loss
Gain / {foss} frem re-measurement of employees’ end-of-

service benefits, net 2]
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value  through

other comprehensive incormne (FVOCT) il
Share of actuarial gains/ (losses) of equity accounted investees 1Q

Ftems thay are or may be reclassified subsequently to profis or
losg
Currency translation reserve
Cash flow hedges - effcetive portion of changes in fair
value - Group

Cash flow hedges - effective portion of changes in fair
value - share of equity acceunted investments 10

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Tetal comprehensive income attributable to;
Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controliing interests

2024 2023
SR SR
73,519,747 129,075,493
408,438 (5,881,844)
(3,037,206) (2,631,856)
236,424 (503,360)
(4,675,871) .
- (923,323)
7,213,608 57,136
145,394 (9,883,747
73,665,141 119,191,746
1,458,330 64,841,003
72,206,811 54,350,743
73,665,141 119,191,746

The accompany ing notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

0
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Nales
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before zakat and income tax
Adfustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 6, 89&23
Provision for emplovees' end-of-service benefits 21
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 31
Share of results from equity accounted associates, net 4]
Allowance for expected credit losses 37
Work in progress assets written-ofT 7
Amortization of deferred revenue
Provision for dismantling cost
Amortization of advance Tjarah rentals
Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories 13
Financial charges, net 30
Changes in operating assets and lahilities
Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables
Due from related parties
Invenlories
Trade payables, acerued and other current lialalities
Cash generated from operating activities
Finance charges paid
Employees' end-of-service benefits paid 21
Zakat and income tax paid a2
Ner cash from operating acrivities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity accounted investee 10
Investiment in an asscciate made during the period 10
Investiment in short term deposits 15
Short term deposits encashed during the year 13
Addition to property, plant and equipment, work in
progress assets and investment properties 6, 7T&G
Addition to intangible assets 3
Praceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from liguidation of associates 0

Net cash used in investing activities

2024 2023
SR SR
134,760,964 155,681,638
237,141,190 190,663,584
10,290,535 3,549,885
(183,074) {64,834)
(6,913,696) (30,503,809)
2,729,564 3,872,533
1,804,140 -
(11,399) 54,884
159,053 (12,253)
8,305,973 7,520,916
372,547 1,895,607
292,674,991 243,803,891
681,130,788 581,462,042
(119,714,834) (62,020,093)
(2,494,736) (584,560)
{696,096) 2,109,720
{211,985,044) 25,213,037
346,240,078 546,180,146
{107,646,699) (67,719,076}
(4,153,759} (7,471,592)
(48,678,742) (18,437,131)
185,760,878 452,552,347
32,315,103 25,019,429
{8,080,676) (6,359,960}
(118,618,268) -
- 279,086,229
(106,953,676)  (628,807,328)
(27,080,669) (43,494,139)
722,096 484,250
1,289,690 s
(226,406,400)  (373,171,519)

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an inlegral part of these consolidated tinancial statements.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2624

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term loans

Receipt of long-term loans

Receipt of short-term ioans

Receipt of short-term loans from related parties

Issuc of share capital to non-controlling interest

Dividend paid

Dividends paid to non-conlrolling interests by subsidiaries
Purchase of treasury sharcs

Payment of intcrest on lease liabilities

Payment of principal portien of lease liabilities
Ner cash (used in) / from financing activities
Net (decrease)} / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash gnd cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

SUPPLEMENTARY NON-CASH INFORMATION

Cash ftow hedges - effective portion of changes in fair
valug - share of cquity accounted investments

Cash flow hedges - effective portion of change in fair value

Re-measurement of employees” end-of-service benefits

Deferred tax

Notes

14
16
16

L5

10
I3
2]

32

2024 2023
SR SR
{156,079,859) (83,132,537)
36,309,720 645,741,567
23,664,626 -
- 148,843,578
49,895 802 )
(32,534,199) (65,280,000)
(147,045,086) (48,756,462)
. (6,622,592)
(6,623,569) (5,932,061}
{8,274,109) (5,722,499)
(240,686,674 579,138,994
(281,332,196) 658,519,822
1,166,405,656 507,885,834
885,073,460 1,166,405,656
7,213,609 57,136
- (335,502)
408,438 (5,881,844)
(351,627) (308,828)

The accompany ing notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consclidated financial stalements.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sustained Infrastructure Holding Company {formerly, "Saudi Industrial Services Company”} (“the Company™ or “the
Parent Company™ or “S15{0") iz a joint stock company incorporated in accordance with Saudi Arabian Regulations
for Companies under the Ministry of Commerce Resolution Ne. 223 of 7 Rabi Al Awal 1409 H {carresponding o 18
October 1988} and registered under Commercial Registration No. 4030062502 dated 10 Rabi Al Thani 1409H
{corresponding to 20 November 1988). The Group via its subsidiaries is engaged in the business of development and
management of porl terminal operations, maritime services, warehouse services, supply chain selutions, logistics
strvices, associated development, and water desalination and treatment plant and sale of water. The principal activity
of the Parent Company is investment and mznagement of subsidiaries,

Cn 21 November 2023, the shareholders of the Company resolved to change the name of the Company from “Saudi
Indusirial Services Company” to “Sustained Infrastructure Helding Company™, The legal procedurzs to change the
Company’'s nume were completed on 4 December 2023,

The repistered head office of the Parent Company is located at Hira Swreel, King Abdulasdz Road, Az Zahra District,
P.O. Box 14221, feddah 23522, Kingdom of Sandi Arabia

These consolidated finarcial statements include assets, tiabilities and the resubts of the operations of the Parent Company
and its following sobsidiaries collectively referred 1o as “the Group™:

Country of Effective
Company incorpoeration sharcholding Principal acrivities
2024 2023

Saudi Trade and Export Saudi Arabia T6% 76% Managemenl and operation of storage and

Crevetopment Company Limited re-exporl project situated on the land leased

(“Tusdcer™) from Jeddzh Islamic Port. {Logistic parks
and support services segment).

Support Services Operation Saudh Arabia 99.28%  99.28% Development and opcration of indusirial

Campany Limiled {"[SNAD™) zones, consiruction and  operalion of
restaurants, catering and  entertainment
centres, construction of pas stations, auto
servicing and maintenance workshops, and
purchase of land for the construction of
building thereon and investing the same
through sale or lease. (Logistic parks and
supporl services segmenl),

Kindasa Water Services Saudi Arabia 65% 65%  Water desalination and trestment plant and

Company — Closed Joint Stock sale of water. [Water desalination and

Company {“Kindasa™) distribution scgment)

Red Sea Port Development Saudi Arabia 60.6% 8U.6%  Development, construction, operation and

Company — Closed Joint Stock maintenance ol container terminals and

Company (“RSPD") excavation and back filling works. (Por
development and aperations segment).

Red Sea Gateway Terminal Saudi Arabia 36.36%  36.36% Development, construction, operation and

Company Limited ("RSGT™) *

14
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY"™)

A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

(i)

CORFORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Country of Effective
Company Incorparation shareholding Principal aciivities
2024 2023
Red Sea Ports Development  Saudi Arabia 40.6% 60.6%  Development, construction, operalion
International 1,imited and  maintenance of  container
(“RSPDI™} terminals and excavalion and back
filling works. (Port developiment and
operations segment).
Red Sea GGateway Terminal Saudi Arahia 36.36% 36.36% Developmenl, construction, operalion
Imernational Limited and mainmenance  of  container
{"REGTI™) =+ terminals and excavalion and back
filling works. (Port development and
operations segment).
RSGT Bangladesh Rangladesh 36.36%  30.36% Development, construction, operation
{"RSGTB™) *** and  maintenance  of  container

lerminals and excavation and back
fitling waorks. (Pon development and
operatiens segment).

*SISCO owns 00L6% eflective inlerest in RSPD which in turn owns 60% interest in RSGT.
¥ CISCO owns 60.6% cilective interest in RSPDI which in turn owns 60% interest in RSGTIL
X SISCO owns 36.36% cileetive interest in RSGTT which in tumn owns 100% interest in RSGT Bangladesh.

On 14 July 2021, SISCO and its subsidiary Saudi Trade and Export Development Company (“Tusdeer™ completed the
sale of its 21.2% and 4% direct equity slake in RSGT respectively. Total procecds net of transaction cost lor sale of
these shares by SISCO and Tusdesr were SR 545.5 million and SR 102.9 million, respectively. ST3C0O had ¢ontinued
1 consolidate RSGT through its subsidiary REPD, This transaction was sccounted for in these consolidated finaneial
statements of the Group as o change in ownership interest of the Group in RSGT without loss of contrel. Accordingiy,
the carrying amounts of non-controllitg interests had increased by SR 300.6 million to rellect the inercasc in their
refative interests in RSGT. The difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests have increased
and the consideration reccived by the Group net of transaction cost amounted 0 SR 347.8 million. This amount was
recognized directly in sharcholders® equity as effect of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries and is attributed
te the sharcholders of the Parent Company. Further, in line with requirement of IFRS Accounting Slandards that are
endorsed in the Kinpgdom of Savdi Arabia, the share of Actuarial valuation Keserve and Cashllow Hedging Reserve of
RAGT anributable to shareholders of Parent Company in the amount of SR 2.8 million and SK 2.4 million, respectively,
were also adjusted 1o reflect the new ownership interest.



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUDL INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

i A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(i) During the vear 2023, the Group's subsidiary Red Sca (Gateway Terminal International Limited (“RSGTI"} (in
which S1SCO owns 36.36% through its investment vehicle Red Sea Ports Development International imited
{(“RSPDI™}) has signed 22 years concession agreement with the Chittagong Port Authority for Patenga Comainer
Terminal {“PCT™) the Bangladesh's primary port, o develop a comprehensive long-term plan for a comainer
lerminal. Under the new concession, the Group's subsidiary, will develop and operate a 500,000 Twenty Foot
Equivatent Unit (*“TEU") facility at PCT in Chittagong.

As per the terms of the concession agreement RSGTI is commined to invest USD 170 million {equivalent to SR
637.3 million} to consolidate and develop the existing infrastructure as a first phase to increase the wial TEU
capacity ta 300,000 TL:Us.

The Group's snbsidiary, RSGT Bangladesh, commenced its commercial operations from 11 June 2024.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Stalement of compliance

These consolidated {inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with [FRS Accounting Standards that are
endorsed in Kingdom of $audi Arabia {“"K8A") and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi
Oreanization for Chartered and Prefissional Accountants (“SOCPA™), snd in compliance with provisions of the
Repulations for Companics and the Company’s By-laws.

1.2 Basis of measurcment

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cosl canvenlion, except for finatieial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) which are carried a1 their lair vahues, using the acerual basis
of accounting and going concern assumption,

2.3 Functicoal and presentation currency

The consclidaled financial statements are prescnled in Saudi Rival (“SR™, which is also the functional and
preseniattonal currency of the Group,

2.4 Basis for consolidation

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as 2t reporting date. Controt is achieved when the Group is expnsed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvernent with the investee and has the ability to atfect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group comrols an investee if, and only i the Group has:

. Power over the investee {Le., existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the relevant activities of the
invesiegh.

. Exposure, or rights, to variable retorns from its involvement with the invesiee.

. The ability 10 use its power over the invesiee to affect its returns.

Generally, there 1s & presumption thal a majority of voting rights results in control. To suppert this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

. The contractual arrangement with the other vole holders of the investee.
. Rights arising from other contracwual arrangements,
. The Group’s voting rights and potential voung rights.
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SUSTAINEDNNINFRASTRUCTURE HOLBING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUD] INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")
{A Baudi Joint Steck Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION {continned)
2.4 Basis for consolidation (continued)

The Group re-assesses whether or not L controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
10 ane or more of the three elements of contra). Consolidation of a subsidiaty begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries. Assets, liabilitics, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 10 control the subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive ncome (“OCI) are attobuted 10 the equity holders of the
Parent Company of the Group and (o the non-controlling interests, even H this results in the non-controlling intercsts
having a deficit balance, When necessary, adjustmems are made to the financial stmemems of subsidiaries (o bring their
accountng poelicies m line with the Group's accounting policies. Al inra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses atd cash flows relating 10 transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on conselidation.
A change in the ewnership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaclion,

If the Group loses control aver a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilitics, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resubant gain or loss i3 recognised in consolidated
statemnent of profit or loss,

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group™s censolidaled linancial slatements requires management to make jodgments, estimales
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liahilities, and the accompanying
disclosure of continpent liabilities at the date of preparing the consalidated financial statements. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could resolt in outcomes that could require a material adjustment (o the carrying
amount of the assct or liability affected in the future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group accounting policies, management has made he following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial stalements:

Going concern

The Group's management has made an assessmend of the Group's ability to continug as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Group has the resources to conlinue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermaore, the management is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefere, the consolidated financial statements continue 16 be prepared on the going concern basis.

Accounting for service concession arrangement

Certain of Group’s service concession arrangements are zccounted for in accordance with reguirements of PR 12
‘Service Concession Arrangements’. Although IFRIC 12 does not deline ‘public-io-privale service concession
arrangement”, it deseribes the typical features of such arrangements which inclode infrastructure vsed to deliver services,
a contractual arrangement between a gramor and an operator which specifies the services the operator is to provide
using the infrastructure and govemns the hasis en which the operator will be remunerated and the construction, upgrade
operation and maintenance of that intrastructure by the operator.

Management has assessed that certain of the Group's concession arrangements ate in scope of IFRIC 12 as set out in
note 4. Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty which allecl the amounts relating 1o the accounting for
congession arrangements pertain o the recognition, measurement and derecognition of the concession assets and related
liabilities due to complexities inherent in the concession arrangements and assessment for any internal or extemal
indicators of impairment.



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

A Savudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the yecar ended 31 December 2024

A, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgernents {continued)

Derermining the lease ternt of contracsys with renewal and termination aptions - Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coversd by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods coversd by an option 1o terminate the
lzase, if it s reasonably cerain not to be exercised.

The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option w0
renew or terminate the lease, That is, it considers all relevant factors thar create an economic incentive lor il Lo cxercisc
cither the renewal or lermination. Adler the commencement date, the Group reassesses the leasc term if there s a
significant event or chanae in drcumstances that is within s contral and affects its ability 10 cxercise or not (o exercise
the option to renaw or to terminate (e.g., consiruction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation
to the leased asset).

The renewa! peried upon mutual consem for lease are not included as part of the lease term because it is not reasonably
certain that the lease will be extended.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions conceming the luture and other key sources ol cstimation uneertainty al the reporting date, that
have a signilicant risk of causing a material adjusiment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, arc described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the controf of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Information about the assumptions and estimation
uncertainties is included in the following areas;

Usefiel fives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and investrmeni properies

The Group's management determines the estimated uscful lives of its property, plant and cquipmen! and investment
properties lor calculaling depreciation. These estimates are determined after considering the expected usage of the assels
or physical wear end 1car. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and furure depreciation
charges would be adjusied where the managemen believes the uselul lives dilfer tom previpus ¢slimates.

Provision far expected credit lnsses (ECL} of rade receivabies

The Giroup uses a provision matrix to caiculate ECL for trade receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on the
Ciroup’s historical observed default ratcs. The (roup calibrates the matrix o adjust the historical eredit loss experience
with forward-looking information. At every reporting dale, the historical observed delaull rles are updated and changes
n the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historicat observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast cconomic condilions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers " actual defaull in the future. The information about the ECL on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in
note 34,

Tmpairment of non-financiaf arsets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generaling unil exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its Gair valug Tess costs of disposal and s value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conductled at arm’s Tength, for similar assels or observable
market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset, The valug in use calculation is based on a DCF model.



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUD] INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

LA Saudi Joint Stock Compans |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2024

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimates and assum ptions (continued)

Ermplovee bengffits Habilities

The cosl of the end-of-service under defined unfunded beneinn plans is determined using an actuarial valuation. An
actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developrn ents in the futurs, These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, and mortality rates. Due o the complexity of the
valuation and its fong-term nature, a defined unfunded benefit obligation is sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions.
All assumpions are reviewed on an annuai basis or more frequently, if required. Further details about employee benefits
liabilities are provided in note 21.

Disconnt rate for presens value calcalations

[iscount rates represent the current market assessment of the tisks specific to the entity, 1aking into consideration the
time value of meney and individual risks of the underlving assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow
estimates. The discount rate caleulation (s based on the specific circumstances of the entity and is derived from ils
weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and cquity. The cost of equity is
derived from the ¢xpected return on investment by the entity’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing
borrowings the entity is obliged to service. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount
and timing of the fiture tax Nows in order to reflect a pre-tas/zakat discount rte,

Deferred tax

Delerred tax assets are recognised for vnused tax losses to Lhe extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
availablc against which the losses can be utilised. Significunt management judgement is required o determine the
amount of deferred lax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely tming and the level of future trcable profits,
wegether with future 1ax planning stralegics.

Lenses — Estimating the incremental borrowing riete

The Group uses its incremental barrowing rate (IBR) 1o measure lease liabilities. The 1BR is the rate of Interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with & similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value 1o the right-of-use asset in a similar economic cnvironment. The IR therefore reflects what the
Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation wher no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to refect the lerms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs {(such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity- specilic estimates.



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently 1o all period presented in these consalidaied
financial statements.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset of paid te (ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 75 based on the presumption that the

transaclion to scll the asset or transfer the Bability takes place either:

» I the principal market for the asset or liability; or

. In the absenrce of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessibic by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel participants would use when
pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants acl in their cconomic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non- financial asset takes inlo account a marke! participant’s ability 1o generate cconomic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and hest use or by selling it to another market participant thal would use the asset in its
highest and bost use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufTicienl data are available
to measure fair valug, maximising the usc of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and lizbilities for which fair valuc is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, bascd on the lowest leve! inpat that is significant to
the fair vilue messurement as 4 whole:

- Level | - Quoled (unadjusicd) markel prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabililies

. Level 2 - Valuation technigues For which the lowest level input that {s significant 1o the [air value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valpation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement

is unobservable

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability falls into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is calegorized in iis entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
input level that is significant to the entire measurement.

"The Group reeognizes Iranslers between levels of the fair value higrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the change has occurred.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Comgpans = —
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Foreign eurrcncies

The Group's consolidaled financial statements are presenied in Saudi Rivals, which is also the Parent Conipany’s
functional currency. For each subsidiary, the Group determiines the functional curreney and items included in the
financial staternents of each entity are measured using that functional currency, The Group uses the dircet method of
consolidation and on disposal of" a forcign operation, the pain or Joss that is reclassified to consolidated statoment of
profit or loss reflects the amount Lhal arises from wsing this method.

Transactions and balancex

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional curmency
spot rates at the daie the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are lranslated at the fonctional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
setilement or translation of monetary items are recognised as profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment i a lurcign operation. These are recognised as OCI
until the nel investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss in the
cotisolidated statement of profit or loss. Nun-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
cutrency are transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monctary items measured
at fair value in a forcign currency are translaied using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
T'he gain or loss arising on translation of pon-monetary items measured at fuir value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.

Forzign operations

The assets and liabilitizs of forvign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are
translated to Saudi Rivals al exchange rates at the reporting date. Dividends received from foreign associales are
translated at Ihe exchange rate in effect at the transaction date and related currency translation dillerences are realized
in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operativn is disposed of, the relevant amount in the translation reserve is transferred 10 the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of the profil or loss on disposal. On the partial disposal {without loss of conirel} of a
subsidiary that includes a forelpn opuration, the relevant proportion of such cumulative amount is reattributed 16 non-
controlling interest,

Forcign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operaton, the
selllement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the furesceable Tutare and which in substance is considered
to form part of the net invesiment in the foreign operation, arc recognized in the forcign exchange transtation reserve
via other comprehensive income,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measarement
ltems of property and equipment arc measured at cost less aceomulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
lossas, iFany, In accordance with requirernents of IAS 16 “Property, plast and equivment”.

Cost includes expenditure that iz direcily attributable 10 the acquisition of the asset. The cost of seli-constructed assels
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs diteetly auributable to bringing the assets to a working
condilion for their intended usc, the costs of dismantling and removing the ilems and restoring the site on which they
are tocated, and borrewing costs on qualifying assets. When parts of an item of property and cquipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate ilems {major components) of properly and equipment.

Giains and Tosses on disposal of an itlem of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds ffom

dispasal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {comtinued)
Property, plant and equipmient {continued)

Recognition and measuretnent (continued)

Xubsequent costs

The cost of replacing & part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the fulure cconomic benefits embodicd within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrving amount of the replaced pan is derccognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
propenty, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred,

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated over the depraciable amount, which is (he cost ol an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its residual value,

Drepreciation is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss an a straipht-ling basis over the estimated
uselul lives of each part of an item of property and equipment. l.eased assets, development cost of leasehold land and
buitding on lzasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and thelr useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain ownershup by the end of the lease werm. Land is not depreciated.

Drepreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusied, il appropriate.

The cstimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Shorter of lease / concession period or 10— 40 vears
Leaschold improvements Shorter of lease / concession period or 10— 40 years
Plant and cquipment Shorter of lease / concession perind or 5 — 20 vears
Desalination Plant Shorier of lease £ 40 years

Machinery and equipment 2~ 25 yeary

Motor vehicles 5— 10 years

Fixlures and furnishing 5— 10 years

Computers and equipment 2 - 5 years

Capiltal work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried al cost less any recognized impairment loss. When the assets are ready for intended
use, the capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate property, plant and equipment calegory and is
accounted for in accovdance with the Group's policies

Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on ivitial recognition at cost. The cost of imangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value al the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible asscts
are carried at cost lgss any accumulated amonisation and accumulated impaiment losscs. Internally pencrated
Intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are nol capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in
comsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incwrred. The uselul lives of intanpible
assets are assesscd as either linite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that ke intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation perlod and the amortisation method
far an intangible asset with a finite useful e are reviewed at least at the end of euch reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected patlern of consumption of luture cconomic benefits embodied in the assel are
considered 1o modify the amorisation pericd or method, as appropriate, and are wreated as changes in accounting
estimales. The amortisaion expense on imangible assets with finite lves is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the expense catepory that Is consislent with the function of the intangible assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLEICY INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets {continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives {goodwill) are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, cither
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually 1o determing
whether the indefinite lifc conlinues to be suppenable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finile is made
on a prospective basis,

Port concession rights

The Group's port terminal operations at Jeddah Islamic Port are conducted pursuant te loeng-lerm concession
arrangemenl, whereby the grantor has contracled with the Group, as operator, 10 develop (or upgrade) operate and
maintain the concession asscts and as operator charge users for services rendered. The Group recognises port concession
rights arising from a service concession arrangement, in which the public sector (“the grantor”) contrals or regulates the
services provided, the prices charged and controls any significant residual interest in the infrastructure such as property
and equipment if the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or
purchased by the Group as part of service concession arrangement.

The Group recognises inlangible asset arising from service concession arrangement when it has a fght 1o charze for use
of the concession infrastructure. Intangible asset received as consideration for providing comstruction or upgrade
services in a service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on Initial recognition with reference to the fair
value of the services provided. The port concession rights include all costs {ncurred towards construction of the
concession asset that are expected to contribute, directly or indirectly, to generating concession revenues, Any amounts
pad by the operator o the prantor as 2 consideration for obtaining the rights relating to concesston arrangements, that
are substantially lixed, are accounted as part of service concession asset. Concession asset also include cerlain property,
plant and eguipment contributed by the Group in accordance with IFRIC 12 requiretnents.

The estimated useful life of an itangible asset in a service concession arrangemant 15 the pariod from when the Group
is able to charge the public for the use of the infrastructure to the and of the concession period which is 30 years or life
of the underlying asscts, whichever is shorter

The Group recognises an inlangible asset arising from a s¢rvice concession arrangement when it has g right 10 charge
for use of the concession infrastruclure, An indangible asset received as consideration for providing consinuetion or
upgrade services in o service concession arrangement is measured al Fair value on inital recognition with reference to
the Fair value of the services provided.

Giains or losses ansing [rom de-recognilion of service concession assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recopnised in the consaelidated statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible asseis related io fived and guaranteed variahls fee

Service concession arrangements, where: (a} the granior controlg or regulates what services the entities in the Group
can provide with the infrastructure, to whom it can provide them, and at what price; and (k) the grantor controls {through
ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise} any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end ol the
term of the arrangement. The Group 1% required Lo pay variows fees under New Concession Agreement and s accounted
tor under SFRIC 12 - Servive Concession Arrargements. Out of the wal fee, the lixed and guarnieed varfable fee, the
deferment of which is beyond the Group's control. are classified as “Intangible assets™.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets related o fived and grarameed variable fee (continued)

Such intangible asscts are initially measured at the fair value of the fixed and guaranized variable fee to be paid 1o the
grantar and a corresponding financial liahitity is recorded in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial instruments ™. The cost
of intangible assets ineludes the present value of the fixed and guaranteed variable fee (as defined in the New Concession
Agreement} payable 1o the grantor vver the terms of the agreement. Al other variable fee is charged to conselidated
slatement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Subscquently, these intangible assets are carried al cost less aceumulated amort{zation and accumulated impaimnent
losses, if any. Amortization is computed using the expected pattern of the usage of the underlying intangible assets over
life of the New Concession Agreement in ferm of containers handling. In addition, al the end of each reporting period
it is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaircd. If any such indication exists, the Group
cstimates the recoverable amount of the intangible asser.

The concession right s derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are cxpected from its use or
dispesal. Gain or loss from derecognition of the port concession tight is measured as the difference between the net
dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible asscts, including software and development and success [ees, that are acquired by the Group and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumnlated amortisation and accumulated impaitment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it inereases the luture ceconomic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on intermally generated poodwill and brands, is
recogniscd in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurmred.

Amortisation Is calewlated vver the cost of the asset, or other ameunt substiluted for cost, less its residual valuz. The
estimated useful lives of sofiware is from 2 to 5 years and development and success fees is based on the concession
period.

Ihvestaent properties

[nvestment property is property held cither to earn rental income or for capilal appreciation or for both, but not for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes,

Invesiment properties are megsured initially at cost, including {ransaction costs. Subsequemly investment propertics are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accurnulaled impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost
ol replacing parts of the investmunt properties and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significanl parts of investment properties are required to be teplaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised in the consalidated stalement of profit or loss as incorred.

Invesiment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no fulure sconomic benelit is expected from its disposal. Realized gaing or losses
on disposal of investment properlies, representing the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount, are included in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Investment properties (continned)

Transfers are made to {or from) investmenit praperties only when there is a change in use. Fer a transfer [rom investment
property to owner-occupied praperty, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is Lhe depreciated value at the date of
change.

Depreciation is caiculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Hves is either on lease term or 30 years
whichever is shorter.

Leases

The CGiroup assesses at contract ingeption whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, il the contract conveys the
right to cantro] the use of an identified asset for a period of time in cxchange for consideration.

Group ax a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-valuc assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assels representing
the right w use the underlying assets.

)] Right-of-use asscis
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use).

The Group recogmses right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying assct 1s
available for use). Right-uf-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairmoent losses,
and adjusted for any remessurcmeni of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabzlities recopnised, Initial direct costs incurred, and leuse payments made at or belore the commuencerment dale less
any lease incentives recelved. Ripht-ol-use assets are depreciated on a straight-ling basis over the shorier of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

If ownership of the leased assel transiers to the Group al the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exerclse of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated usetul life of the asset. The rightl-of-use assels are also
subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in seclion.

The right-of-usc asscls are presented as a separate line in the consolidaled statement of financial position.

i) Lease lighilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of lease
payments (0 be made over the leage term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in-substange fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 1ease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
cxpected to be pald under residual value puarantees. The lease pavments alse include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably cerain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the 1ease, if the lease
term teflects the Group exercising the option ta werminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recopnised as expenses {unless they are incurred Lo produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment oceurs,

In calculating the presenl value of lease payments, the Group uscs ils meremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily delerminable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease pavments
made. In addition, the carying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change 7n the [ease
term, a change in the lease payments (¢.g., changes to future payments resuhing from a change in an index or rate used
to determing such lease puyments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underying asset,

The leasc liabilities are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial pasition.

25



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

iA Saudi Joint Stock Compiany |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Leases {continued)

Group as @ tessee (continued)

Short-term leaves and leases of low-valie assets

Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low valuc assets are ilems that do not meet the
Group’s capitahsation threshold and are considered to be insignificant for the consolidated statement of financial
position for the Group as & whole. Payments for short-tenn leases and leases of low value assets are recognised on 4
straight-line basis in the consolidaled statement of profit or less.

Group as a lessar

Al commencement or on modification of a contract that containg a lease component, the Group allocales the
consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of its relative stand-ulone prices. When the Group act
a5 lessor, 1t determines at lease inceplion whether each lease is a finance lease or operating lease, Leases in which the
Group docs not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
I{ this Is not the case then the fease is classified as finance lease, Tnitfal direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the camying amount of the icased asset and recognised over the leass term on the same
basis as rental ingome. The Group recognized lcase payments reccived under the operating leases as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are carned.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entty over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power 1o participaie
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investes but is not control over those policies.

The consideraiions made In delermining significant influence control are simifar to those necessary to determine control
over subsidianies. The Group’s investingnts in its associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the cquity method, the inveslment in an associale is initially recognised at cust. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate since the acquisilion date.
Goodwill relating 1o the associates is included in the carrving amount of the investment and is not tested for mpairment
separately,

The consolidated siziement of profit or lpss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the assacialcs. Any
change in OCI of those investoes is presented as part of the Group's other comprehensive income {*GCT™). In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in (he equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated stalement of changes in shareholders™ equity. Unrealised gains and losses
rosulting [Fom (ransactions between the Group and the associates arc climinated (o the extent of the interest in the
associale,

The aggregate of the (Giroup’s share of profit or loss of an associate is showi on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss cutside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling inierests in the
associates.

The financial stalemenits of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary,
adjusiments are made 1o bring the accounting policies in line with those ol the Group.

When the Group's share of Insscs excceds its interest in associales, the carrying amount of that interest, including any
long- term investments, is reduced to nil, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued cxcepl to the extent that
the Group has a cormesponding legal or constructive obligation.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Investment in associates (continued)

After application of the equity method, the Group determtines whether [t is necessary to recognise an impairment loss
on its investment in s assoclates. At cach reporting date, the Group delermines whether there is objective evidence that
the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. IT there 13 such evidence, the Group caleulates the amount
of impairment gs the difference between the recoverable amount of the associale and its carrying value, and then
recognises the loss within *Share of profitloss of an assoctate” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Lipon loss of significant Influgnce over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at ils
fair value. Any difforence between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of signfficant influence and the tair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profil or loss.

Dividend from soech invesiments is recognised when received and is credited to the investment accounlt.
Financial tnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one gntity and a financial liability or equity
instrurnent of another entity.

iy Financial nssets

Initial recagnition and measarement
Financial asscis are classified, atinitial recognition, as subscquently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCT), and fair value through profil or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them, With the exception of trade and other receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the {iroup has applied the practical expedient, the
Group initially measures 2 fimancial assel at its fair value plus, in the case of 2 financial assel not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade and other receivables that do not contain a significant financing ¢component or
which have a matunty of lessthan 12 months are measured at the transaction price as per IFRS 15, Refer section revenue
{rom contracts with cuslomers

In order for 4 financial asset to be classificd and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, il needs o give
rise lo cash (ows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount outstanding. This
asscssment i referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, Financial asseis with cash flows that
are nat SPPI are classificd and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group™s business model for managing financial assets refers 1o how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractuat cash
flows, selling the Anancial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order o colleel contractual cash flows while financial assets
classtiied and measured at fair value through OCT are held within o business model with the objective of both holding
1o collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marker place (regular way trades) are recognised on the rade date, i, the date thar Group commits
to purchase or scll the assct.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATICN (continued)
Fipaocial instruments (continued)
] Fimancial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subscquent measurement, financial assets are ¢lassified in following catepories:
* inancial assets a1 amortised cost (debt instruments)
+  Financial assets at fair value through OCH with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debt instrumnents)
+  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derzcognition (equity instruments)
= Fipancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assely al amortised cost {debt instrumernts)

Financial assets al amortised cosl are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (E1R) method and arc
subject 10 impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of prafit or logs when the asset is
derecophised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes made and other receivables.

Finangial assets af fair value through OO jdebt insiruments)

For dehi instruments al fair value through OCI, interest income, fpreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recopnised in OC1. Upon derecognilion, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled o profit or loss.

Currently, the Group does not have any financial assets at fair value through OC1.

£ ” s ' ot folr value OC foiguudty instruments)
Upon iniligl recognition, the Company can elecl to classify irmevocably its equily investments as equity instruments
desipnated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under FAS 32 Financiad fnsfrumenis:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-hy-instrument basis.

(3ains and iosses on these financial assets are never recycted Lo profit or loss. Dividends arc recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the righl of payment has been established, exeept when the Company benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of' the cost of the financial asscl, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL
Equily instruments designated at fair value through OC] are nol subject lo impairment asscssment,

Financial assets at I'air value through OCI comprise of equily investment in sharcs of Growth Gate Capital Corporation
3.5.C {a company bascd in Bahrain) {notc 11).

£ Ty 7, f

Financial assets at fair value through profil or loss include Onancial assels held for trading, financial asscts designated
upon inital recognition at fair valug through profit or less, or linancial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
{air value. Financial assetsare classifled as held for trading if they arc acquired for the purpose of sclling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separate embedded derivatives, are also classificd as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial asscts with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and imterest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, imespective of the business model.
Notwithslanding the criteria for debt insiruments o be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as
described above, debt instruments inay be designated a1 failr value through profit or loss on initial recognition il duing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss arc
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement ol profii or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
ii)  Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measarement (continued)

Business mode! assessment
The Ciroup makes an assessment of the objective of the business model i which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to the management.

Reclassiftcation
When and only when, an entity changes its business model for managing financial assets it shail reclassily all affected
financial assets in accordance with the above-mentioned ciassification requirements.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, whers applicable, a part of a financial asset or part ofa group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecagnised (i.c., remaved from the Group™s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Group has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows Irom the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash tlows in full without material delay ko a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either
{a) the Group has transferred substantialty atl the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has wansferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through
arrangement, il evaluates if, and o what extent, it has retaincd the risks and rewards ol awnership, When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor wransierred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, In that case, the Group
also recoghises an assecialed liability. The transferred assel and the associaled liahility are measured on a hasis that
rellects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Condinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes
over the transferred asset Is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required w repay

ii) Financial liabilities

Iriitial recognition and measarement

Financial liabilities are classificd, at initial recognition, as financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
burrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities inchude trade payable, due Lo
related partics and cther liabilities.

Subsequent measyrement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial linbilities at amaortised cost
Significant financial liabilitics of the Group include due 1o related parties and other Tigbilitics. These linancial labilities
are initially measured a1 fair vatue and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derecagnition

A fimancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liabitity is replaced by unother Irom the same lender on substantially differcnt torms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecognition of
the criginal liability and the recognition of a new lisbility. The difference in the respective camrying amounts 1s
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

iii) Offsetting of Minancial instruments

Financial asscts and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position iF there is a currently cnforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on 2 net basis, 10 realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultancously.

Impairment of nancial and non-financial assets

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses {ECLs) for ail debt instruments not held at fair value
through prefit or loss. 13CLs are based on the differcnce between the contractual cash flows due in aceordance with the
comtract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted al an approximation of the original effective
milerest rale. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages, For credit exposures Tor which there has not been 4 significant Increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credin losses that result from default cvents that are possible within the
next 12-months (a 12-month ECL}. For those credil exposures for which there has been a significant inerease in credil
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required For credit losses expected over the remaining lile of the
exposure, frrespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade reecivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calcutating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowanoe based on lifetime ECLLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision malrix that is based on its historical credil loss expericnee, adiusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic cnvironment.

The Group considers a financial asset in delzult when contraciual payments are past due depending upen the contracted
credit period. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a Gnancial assel 10 be in defaull when inlernal or
extemnal information indicates that the Group (s unlikely to receive the culstanding contractual amounts in full before
laking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group, A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expeciation ol recovering the contraciual cash flows.

Non-financial assers

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there s an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair valve less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asser, unless the asser does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of thosc from other assels or groups of sssets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds ils recoverable amounl, the asscl is considered impaired and is wrillen down o its
recoverable amount,

Tn assessing value in use, the estimated futore cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax and income
1ax discount rate that rellects current market assessmentts of the time value of money and the risks specific Lo Lhe assel
In determining fair value less costs of dispasal, recent murket iransactions are 1aken into account. Il no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calcnlations are corrobarated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated stutement ol profit or loss in expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired assel.
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{(formerly, "SAUD! INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")
LA Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FOLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (continued)

Non-firnancial assety fcontinned)

For asscis excluding goodwill, an assessment is made ar each reparting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment Josses no longer exist or have decreased. Tf such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been g change in the assumptions used (o delerming the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, bad no impairment loss hegn
recugnised for the assel in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of proflt or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount. in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation ingrease.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumsiances indicate that the carrving valoe may be impaired.

Impairment is determingd for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of cach CGU for group of CGUSs) (o which
the goodwill refates. When the recoverable amount of the CGLT {s less than ity carrying amaount, an impaimment joss Is
recognised. Impainment losses relating 1o goodwill cannal be reversed in fiture periods

Inventories

Inventories represent spare parls and other supplics. These are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, The
cost of inventorizs is principally based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories and other ¢costs incurred in bringing them to thelr existing location and condition. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale, The Group recognizes an allowance for inventory losses due to factors such as obsolescence,
techrical faults, physical damage eic,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash on hand, cash al banks and
other shori-term highly liguid deposits / investments with originat maturities of three month or less, if any, which are
available to the Group without any restrictions. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of (inancial position, cash
and bank balances consist of cash on hand, bank balances and murababa deposits.

Provisions

Pravisions arc recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resule of a past eveni, it
is prabable that an cutflow of resources embodying ceonomic benelits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a
relizble estimaie ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all ol a provision 1o be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contracl, the reimbursement is recognised as a scparale asset, but only
when the reimbursement is vinually certain. The expense relaling 10 a provision is presented in the consolidaled
staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive income net of any reimbucsement,

If the ellect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due (o the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Emplovee henefits

Nhort-terint employee benefify

Short-term employee benefils are expenscd as the related services are provided. A Nability is recognized for the amount
expecied to be paid il the Group has a present kegal or construetive oblipation to pay this amount as a resull of past
service provided by the emplovee and the oblipation can be estimated relizbly
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(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FFor the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conlinued)

Employee benefits {continued)

Post-emplaymient benefits
The Group operates a single post-employment benefit scheme of defined benefit plan driven by the labor Jaws and
workman laws of the Kingdom ol Saudi Arabia which is based on most recent salary and number of service years.

The post-employment benefit plam is not funded. The liability in respect of defined benefit plan is recognised in the
consolidated statemem of linancial position at the present value of the defined benclit abligation at the reporiing daie.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation {5 determined by discounting the estimated foture payvments by
relerenec o market yiclds at the reporting date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be pald, and that have terms to maturity approximaiing to the terms of the related defined benefit
liability, The Group uses projected unit credit method,

Actuarial gains and losses, if any, are recorded in the profit or loss within the consoliduted slalement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they ocour.

Changes in the present value of the detined benclit obligations resulting from plan amendments or cunailments are
recognised immediately in consolidated slatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as past service
costs. End of service payments are based on employees’ finul salarics and allowances and their cumulative years of
service, as siated in the labor law of Saudi Arabia.

Cash dividend and nen—cash distribution

The Group recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised and no longer al the discretion of
the Group. As per the by-lmws of the Group, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. Interim
dividends are reeorded as Hability in the period in which they are approved by the Board of Directors. Final dividends
are recorded in the period in which they arc approved by the sharcholders. A corresponding amaunt is recognised
directly in sharcholders' equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distibuted with Gair value re-measurcment
recognised direcily in sharcholders' equity.

LIpon distribution of non-vash assets, any difference bolween the camying amount of the liability and the camrying
amourt of the assets distributed is recopnised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revenne

The Group through its subsidiaries, jointly controlled emity and associates is engaged in the following businesses:

*  Development, construction, operation and maintenance of container lerminals and excavation and back filling
works,

»  Management and operation of storage and re-export project situated on the land leased from Jeddah Islamic Port.

*  Water desalination and treatment plant and sale of water,

The Group generally recognizes revenue at a point in time except for lease rental revenue which is recognized on time
propertionate basis over future perigds, The Group transfors control and recognizes a sale when the product is delivered
tn the customer, for the majority of the revenue contracts. Management uses an observable price to determine the stand-
alone selling price for separate performance obligattons or a cost-plus margin approach when one is not available.

If a contract is separated into more than one performance obligation, the lotal transaclion price is allocated o each
performance obligation in an amount based on the estirated relative standalong selling prices of the promised goods or
services underlying each performance obligation. The Group sclls standard products with observable standalone sales
with single performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2024

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {continued)
Revenue (cantingred)

Cash received in advance of revenue being recognieed is classified as current deferred / unearned revenue, except for
the portion expected to be sertled beyond 12 months of the consolidated statcment of financial position date, which is
classificd as non-current deferred revenue,

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration the (iroup expects to receive in cxchange for translerring goods or
providing services, Sales, value add, and other taxes collected concurrent with revenue-producing activities are excluded
from revenue. The Group docs ot have any material significant payment terms as payment is received in advance, at
or shortly after the point of sale,

Sale of poods
Revenue from sale of goods s recognised at the peinlin time when control of the soods s transfarred to the customer,
g g P £
generally on delivery of the goods. The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portien of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction
price lor the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the cxistence of signilicant
financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
I po : pay

Rendering of services

The Group is invelved in the provisivn of operational services in relation (o its port operatons, as well as provision of
logistical and maintenance services. If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting
periods, then the comsideration is allocaled on a relative fair valuc basis between the different services. The Group
recognises revenue from rendering of services based on the asscssment of the work performed / completed (i.e. daifivered
and acknowledged / sccepted) under the contractual obligalion underiaken 1o be performed as per the work order /
contract / sales order,

Constriction and upprode services

Revenue related to construction or upgrade scrvices under a service concession arrangement is recopnised over time,
consistent with the Gireup's accounting policy on reeopgnising revenue on construction contracts, Operations or service
revenue is tecognized in the period in which the services are provided by the Group, If the service concession
arrangemenl contains more than one performance obligation, then the consideration received is allocated with reference
1o the relative stand-alome sclling prices of the services delivered.

Rewial revenur

Revenue from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over respective lease periods. Lease revenue
relating to subsequent years is deferred and recognised as Income over futere periods. Lease incentives granted are
recognised as an integral part of the total rental, over the term of the lease,

Folume rebafes

The Group provides volume rebales to certain customers once their purchase during \he period exceeds @ threshold
specilied in the contrgel, To estimate the variable consideration for the expected fulure rebates, the Group applies the
most likely amount method as the selecigd method better predicts the amoun of varizble consideration driven by
customers” rebate entitlements based on volume threshelds and purchase made by them during the period.

Expenses
Direct cost
Direct cost represents all expenses directly attributable or incidental to the core operating activities of the Group

including but not limited to: depreciation of property, planl and equipment, amortization ef Intangible assets, drectly
attributable employee related costs eic.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)
For the year ended 51 December 2024

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FPOLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Expenses (continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

These include any costs incurred to carmy out or facilitate selling activities of the Group. These costs typically include
salaries ol the sules staff, marketing, distribution and logistics expenses. These also include allocations ol certain gencral
overheads.

General and administrative expenses

These pertain to operation expenses which arc not dircetly related to the production of any goods or services. These also
include allocations of general overheads which are not specifically atributed to direct cost or selling and distribution
CXPENSCS,

Allocation of overheads between cost of revenue, selling and distribution expenses, and general and administration
expenses, where required, is made on 4 ¢onsistent basis.

Finance ¢osts and finance income

Finance costs directly atributable to the acquisition, constrection or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period aftime to get ready for its inlended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All oiher
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Finance costs comprise of interest expense on loans,
bank facilities and lease liabilities unwinding of the discoun! on long-term provisions and obligation under service
concession agreements. Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Tnterest income is recognised as
it accrues in consolidated statement of profit or loss, using the eflective interest method.

Zakat and taxation

Zkat

The Group is subject to Zakat in accordance with the regulations of the Zakar, Customs and Tax Authority ("ZATCA™.
Provision for Zakat for the Group and Zakat related to the Group’s ownership i the Saudi Arabian subsidiaries is
charged to the consulidaled statement of profit or loss.

Current income iax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are meusured at the amount expecied to be recovered from er paid for the
current year to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compuie the amount are those that are cnacted,
or substantively cnacted at the reporting date {n the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

Deferred income fax
Deferred tax is provided vsing the liability method on temporary ditferences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilitics and their carrying amounts for linancial reperting purposes at the reporting date.

Dreferred (ax liabilities are recognised for all wable wemparary ditferences, except:

s When the delerred tax liability arises from the initial recogniton of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of the wransaction, aftects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable proflt or loss

e [nrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, assoclates and interests
in joinl arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controdled and it is
probable that the lemporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable iuiure
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the vear cnded 31 December 2024

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {(continued)
Zakat and taxation (continued)
Deferred income tax (continned)

Deferred tux assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused lax credits and
any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are rocognised to the extent thal It is probable that taxable prodit will be
available against which the deductible lempotary differences, the brought forward unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

+  When the deferred tax assel relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or fiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable prafit or loss

= In respect of deductible wmporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, delemed tax assels are recognised only o the extent that it is prabable that the
temporary diflferences will reverse in the forcseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrving amount of deferred tax assel is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assel to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferrcd tax assets are re-assessed al each reponting date and are recognised 1o the extent that il has
become probable that futiee taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 10 be tecovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabililies arc measured a1 the tax rates thal are expected io apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, Deferred tax relating 1o items reeognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in sharcholders’
cyuily.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfving the criteria for separale recognition at that
date, are recognised subscguently 1T new information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is cither
treated as a reduction in goodwil] {as long as it docs not exceed goodwill) if it was incured during the measyrement
period or recognised in profit or loss,

The Group ofisets deferred ax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only il it has a legally enforceable right o sct off
CutTent 1ax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habililics relate to income taxes
levied by the same waxation authory on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entitics which intend either
1o settle current tax ligbilitics and assets ot a net basis, or to realise the assets and scitle the liabilities simullancously,
in each fisture period in which significant amounis of deferred tax Habilities or assels are expected to be seftled or
recovered.

Withholding tax

The Group companies withhold taxes on transactions with non-resident parties and un dividends paid 10 foreign
shargholders in accordance with ZATCA reguiations, which is not recognized as an expense being the obligation of the
caunter party an whose behal{ the amounts are withheld.

Value added tax (VAT}

Expenses and asscls are recognised net of the amount of VAT, exceptl when the VAT incurred on a purchase of asscls
or services is nol recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the VAT is recegnised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the assel or as purt of the cxpense ilem, as applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year cnded 31 December 2024

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Zakat and taxation {continued}
Segment reporting

Business segment is group of assets, operations or entities:
* engaged in business activilics from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses including revenues and
expenses that relate to trangactions with any of the Group's other compaonents;
= the results of its operations are continueusly analyzed by Group's Chicf Operating Decision Maker {CODM) in
order to make decisions related 1o resource allocation and performance assessment; and
»  [or which financial information is discretcly available.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable te a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on & reasonable basis.

A peographical segment is group of assets, operations or entities engaged in revenus producing activities within a
particular cconemic environment that are subject 1o risks and reéturns different from those operating in other economic
cnvironments.

For management purposcs, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services and has three
repariable segments, as follows:

+  Port developrent and operations

= Logistic parks and support services

& Waler desalination and distribution
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

fa)  New stundards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Group

The accounting policics adupted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, except for the adoption of new standards effoetive as of 1 January 2024, The Group has not early adopted any

standard, interprelation or amendment that has been issued but is not vet effective,

Several amendmenis apply for the first time in 2024, but do not have an impaat on the consolidated financial sialements

of the Group.

Staidard’
Interpretution

Amendment to
IFRS 16, lease
liability in a sale
and leasehack

Amendments (o
[AS 1, Non-
current liabilities
with (Covenants

Amendments to
IAS 7 and [FRE 7
on supplier finance
arrangements

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected

Description

Lease liability in 4 sale and leaseback amends IFRS 16 by adding
subsequent  mcasuremnent  requirements  for sale and  leascback
transactions.

These amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity must
comply within twelve months after the reporting perind affect the
classification of a liability. The amendments alse aim to improve
information an emity provides related 1o Liabililies subject o these
conditions.

These amendments require disclesures (o enhance the {rnsparency of
supplier finance arrangements and their effects on a company’s
liabilities, cash Fows and exposure to lquidity risk. The disclesure
requirements are the 1ASB™s response to investors” concerns that some
cormpanies” supplier finance arrangements are not sufficiently visible,
hindering Investars’ analysis.

to signilicantly affect the cumrent or [Uture periods.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

[ A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (continued)
{b) New standards and interpretations not yet effective
The new and amended standands and inlerprelations that are issued, but not vet effective, up o the date of issuance of

the {iroup's consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Ciroup intends i adopt these new and amended
standards and interpretations, il applicable, when they become effective.

Srundard/
Interpresarion

Amendment to 1AS 21
- Lack of
exchangeability

Amendments o 1FRS
10 and IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Asseis
between an  Investor
and its Associate or
Juint Yenture

Amendments to IFRS
9 Financial
Instruments and IFR %
7 Financial
Instruments:
Dhsclosures

[FRS

1% - presentation and
disclosure in financial
statements

TFRS 19, Subsidizaries
without Public
Accountability:
Disclosures

Deseription

IASB amended LAS 21 Lo add requircments to help in determining
whethier a currency is exchangeable into another currency, and the spot
exchange rate o use when it is nat exchangeable, Amendment sel out a
framework under which the spot exchange rate at the measurement dale
could be determined using an cobservable exchange rate withoul
adjustment or another estimation technique.

Partial gain or lgss recognition for transactions between an investor and
its associate or joint venture only apply to the gain or loss resulting from
the sale or contribution of assety that do not conslilute @ business as
defined in [FRS 3 Business Combinations and the gain or loss resulting
from the sale or contribution to an Associate or a joint venlure of assets
that constitute a business as defined {n [FRS 3 is recognized in full.

Under the amendments, certain financial assets including those with
ESG-linked feawres could now meet the SPPI criterion, provided that
their cash flows arc not significantly dilierent [rom an identical [nancial
asset without such a featore. The JASR has amended IFRS 9w clarily
when a financial asset or a financial liability is rocopnized and
derecognized and to provide an exception for certain financial labilities
settied using an electronic payment sysiem.

IFRS 18 provides guidance on ftems in statement of profit or toss
classified into five categories: operating; investing; financing; incomc
taxes and discontinued operations It defines a subser of meusures related
to an entity's financial performance as ‘*management-defined
performance measures” (*MPMs™). The totals, subtotals and line items
presented in the primary financial statements and items disclosed in the
notes need 0 be described in a way that represents the characteristics of
the item. It requires foreign exchange differences lo be classified in the
same category as the income and expenses from the items that resulted
i the forcign exchange differences.

IFRS 19 allows eligible subsidiaries tw apply IFRS Accounting
Standards with the reduced disclosure requirements of IFRS 19 A
subsidiary muy choose to apply the new standard in its consolidated,
separatle or individual financial statements provided that, at the reporting
dale 1t dows nol have public accountabilily, and its parent produces
consolidated financial stalements under IFRS Accounting Standards.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™

A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
For the year ended 31 Diecember 2024

6. PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

2024 2023

AR SR

Property, plant and equipment (note i) 178,921,599 176,593,052
roperty and equipment — poert lerminal operations {note (ii)) 43,781,817 56,413,173
Property and equipment of bonded and re-export project (note (3ii)) 22,420,166 23,871,025
245,123,882 256,879,290

iy  The desalination plant ang filling stations are sinsated on land leazed from the Saudi Port Authority.
ity  The Graup's property and equipment  port terminal operations has been pledged against the ljara facility (note 20).

ifi)y The buildings and lzasehold improvements are situated on a plot of land leased from Saudi Ports Authonity (MAWANT
for a nominal annual remigl, The initial lease agrecment is for 20 Hijra years starting from {5 Muharmam 1419H
{corresponding to 11 May 1998} with 2 grace period of two Hijra years. On 22 Ramadan 1424H (corresponding o 16
November 2003} the leass agreement was extended (o 40 Hijra years.

iv) Dcpreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

2024 2023

SR SR

Direct costs 10,693,061 13,768,437
Selling and distribution expenses (nate 28) 364,923 1,499,914
General and administrative expenses (note 29} 15,724,221 8,880,695
26,782,205 24149046

——

7. WORK IN PROCRESS ASSETS

Work in progress assels mainly comprise of Jeddah Logistic Park Projects and work in progress in respect of port terminal
operaiions. The carrying amount of work in progress assets represents amount paid to contractors and suppliers for the civil
works, equipment and comtract assets related to concession agreement. Once complete, these assets and their carrying
amount will be ransferred o respuective asscl calcgory.

The movement in the work in progress assets is summarized below:

2024 2023

Ry SK

At the beginning of the year 203,734,674 37731977

Additions during the vear 938172455 £16.862,934

Transfer to praperty and equipment {note 6) (3,984,101) (13,175,750

Transfer (o intzngible assets - port concession rights and assets (note %.1) (70,733,20T) (576,923 .449)

Transfer to invesiment properties (note 9) (95,361 244) (140,528,150)

Transfer 10 imangibles software (note 8.3) (62,323) {232,888)
Write ofl during the vear (1,804,140) -

At the end of the vear 125,606,912 203,734,674
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")
i-A Saudi Joint Stock Company }

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

7.  WORK IN PROGRESS ASSETS (continued)

As at reporting date, work in progress asscls include investment propertics and expansion work on container terminal
amounting to SR 1003 million and SR 19.9 million respectively (3] December 20823 SR 162.9 million and 30 million
respactively).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, borrowing costs amounting $R 3.4 million (31 December 2023: SR 2.5 million)
wire capitalized into in work in propress assets.

Work in progress assets include contract assets amounting o SR 18.62 million (2023: SR 30.8 million) which represents
the amounts incurred by the Group for the consolidution and expansion work on container terminal under the New Service
Concession Agreement, During the vear, addition 10 work in progress comract asséts amounted to SR 53.42 million (2023:
SR 508.6 million) and capitalization from comract assel to intangible asseis - port concession rights amounted (o SR 64.71
million (2023: SR 576.9 million).

8. TNTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assels comprise of the following:

2024 2023

SR SR

Porl concession rights and assets (note 8.1) 2,024,239,375 2,073,666,184
Intangible asscts related o fixed and puaraniced varable fee (note 8.2) 1,555,883,680 1,411,674,556
Other intangible assets (note 8.3} 2,666,114 1,446,865
3,582,789,16% 3,486 787,609

Tusdeer, a subsidiary of the Grroup, had entered into a Build-Operate-Transter (the “BOT Agresment’) agreement with
Saudi Ports Authornity {"MAWANI" or the “Grantor™) for the construction of a container ternunal at the Re-cxport Zonc of
Jeddah Islamic Port. The BOT Agrecement was, subseguently, novaled by Tusdeer o REGT another subsidiary of the Group,
effective from 22 Shawal 1428H {corresponding to 3 Navember 2007). The period of the BOT Agreement originally was
for 32 years. On 23 December 2019, RSGT, entered into a new concessien agreement {the New Concession Agreement)
with MAWAN] whereby RSGT acquired rights to build, update and aperate North Container Terminal in addition to the
terminal operated under the BOT Agreement, effective from 1 April 2020 (the effective date) for a period of 30 years from
this date and has an option t0 repew the lerm before the expiry based on mutual agreement.

As per the New Concession Agreement there is no explicit requirement 1o replace the concession assets, however, there is
d reguirement of serviceability for 4 years at the end of the arrangement. L'nder the terms of the Concession, MAWANI]
stipulates the tariffs o be applied by the Operator when providing services and has the right to review the published tariff
structure, The Group has 2 right W charge users of the port for services provided in accordance with the New Concession
Agreement. Intangible assets — porl concession rights are securcd against the [Jara facililies obtained from local banks.

The New Concession Agreement stipulates payment of the lixed and guaranieed variable fues to the Gramor on the specified
rates over the life of the agreement. These fees have been recorded as intanpible asset at the present value under the puidance
of TFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements’ (IFRIC 12), with & corresponding liability recognized as obligation. All
other variable tees under the New Concession Agreement are charged to consalidated statement of profil or loss as and
when incurred.

Further, RSP, a subsidiary of the Group, has entered into an LEquip-Operate and Transfer {the “EOT Agreement™)
agreement on & Decetnber 2023 with Chittagong Fort Authority ("CI'A”™ or the “grantor™) for the upgrading and operating
of a Patenga Container Terminal (“PCT™) al the Bangladesh's primary port. The agreement is novared to RSGT Bangladesh
Limited (*BSGTB™), a subsidiary of the Group. Under the EQT Agrecment, RSGTB will develop and operate a 500,000
Twenty Fool Equivalent Unit (' TEU™} container terminal facility.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

[ A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

8  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The period of the EOT Agrectnemn is lor 22 years, cllective from 11 June 2024 (the cffcclive date} and has an option to
renew the lerm before the expiry based on mutual agreement. As por the EOT Agrecment, there is no explicit requirement
to replace the concession assets. Under the terms of the EGT Agreemoent, CPA stipulates the tariffs to be applied by the
Operator when providing services and has the right to review the published 1arifi structure, The Group subsidiary has a right
to charge users of the pont for services provided in accordance with the EOT Agreement.

The BOT Agreement stipalates payment of upfromt foe, the Aixed and guaranteed variable fzes on the specified rates over
the life of the agreement. These fees have been recorded as intangible asset at the present value under the guidance of IFRIC
12 *Bervice Concession Arrangements’, with a corresponding liability recopmized as obligation. All other variable fees
under the EOT Agrecment are charged 1o consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred

8.1  Port concession rights and assets

The movement in port concession rights is as follows:

2024 2023
SR SR
Cost
At the beginning of the year 3,225,437075 2,605, 576,600
Additions 24,008,833 43,154,326
Transfer from work in progress assets (note 7) 70,733,207 576,523,449
Disposals (1,272,650% (217,300)
At the end of the year 3,319,806,465 3,225,437,075
Amortization
At the beginning of the year 1,151,770,891 I3 316,703
Charge for the year 145,068,849 108,524 570
On disposals (1,272,650) {70,332)
At the end of 1he yeat 1,295,567,090 1.151.770,891
Net book value 2024239375 20073,606,184

Amortizalion charged is ingluded in the dircot costs,
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

LA Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

8.2 Intangible assets related to fixed and guaranteed variable fees

Cost
At the beginning of the year
Additions

Change due w modification im fixed and puaranteed variable fec

Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the veur
Charge: for the year

At the end of the year

Net book valug

2024 2023
kY4 SR
1,534,457,606 1.534,457.606
108,324,327 .
72,254,811
1,715,036,744 [,534,457,606
122,783,050 88,342,832
36,370,014 34,440 218
159,153,064 122,783,050
1,555,883,680 1,411,674,536

As per the New Concession Agreement of RSGT, the Grrantor and the Operator agreed to revise the fixed and guarantesd
variabls fee payable to the Grantor due to amendment in the Tand area and change in tarifis charged to the customers. This
reshied in a change in obligation under the Service Concession Agreement, discounted at the appropriste weighted average
cost of capital, and adjusted the curresponding camrying value of the imangible assels related to fixed and guaranteed variable

fee.

8.3 Other intangible assets

Other imangible assets comprise of computer software and software licenses used by the Graup companies to manage their
financial and operational activities. The movement in other intangible assets is as foltows:

Caost

Al the beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Transters from capital work-in-progress (nole 7)
Disposals

Al the end of the year
Amortization

At the beginning of the vear
On disposals

Charge for the year

At the end of the vear

Net book value

44

2024 2823

SR SR
26470917 27,627 435
2,171,836 139,813
62325 232 R88

- (1,729.219)
26,705,078 26,470,917
25,024,048 25,278,363
- {1,729,219)
1,014,916 1,474,902
26,038,964 25,024,048
2,664,114 1,446,869




SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

IA Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. INTANCGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
8.3 Other intangible assets

Amaoriization charge lor the vear has been allocated as follows:

2624 26023
SR SR
Selling and distribution expensgs (note 28) - 6,854
General and administrative expenses (note 29) 1,014,916 1,468,048
014,916 1,474,502
9. INVESTMENT FROPERTIES
The movement in investment property is as follows:
Leasehold Leasehold Buildings on 31 December 3! December
fand  improvements  leasehold land 2024 2023
SR hY.s SR SR SR
Cost
Al the beginning of the year 63,851,155 114,639,794 274,500,990 452,991,939 314408430
Transfers from capital work-
in-progress (note 7) - 18,388,264 76,972,980 95,361,244 140,528,150
Disposals - - - - {3.103.008)
Additions during the year - 166,450 1,388,253 1,554,703 1,058 367
At the end of the year 63,851,155 133,194 508 352,862,223 549,907,886 452,991,939
Accumulated depreciation
Al the beginning of the year 16,994,606 56,474,291 90,903,852 164,372,74% 130,576,705
Depreciation for the year
(capitalized in work in
Progress asscts) 351,918 - - 351,918 350,956
Charge for the year 2.226,649 4416112 15,277,849 21,920,610 16,448,095
On disposals - - - - £3,003,007)
At the end of the vear 19.573,173 60,890,403 106,181,701 186,645,277 164,372,749
Net book value: 44277982 72,304,105 246,680,522 363,262,600 28R,619.190

2.1 Depreciation charge lor (he yvear has been allocated 1o direct cast.

&.2  Invesiment properties represent warehouses remled Lo customers for storage and warchousing purposes, for 2 minimum

period of 12 months.

9.3 The buildings and leasehold Improvements are situated on a plot of land Icased lrom Saudi Ports Authority lor a
nominal annual rental. The initial lease agreement was for 20 Hlijra vears slarling [rom 15 Muharram 1419H
(corresponding to 11 May 1998) with a grace period of two Hijra vears, on 22 Ramadan 1424)1 (corresponding lo 16
November 2003) the lease agreement was extended to 40 Hijra vears. The fair value of the investmem properties is
vatued at SR 598.1 million (2023: SR 46%.7 million) by MAS Unified Valuation Company (20123 Advisory Carp),
licensed by “Saudi Authority for Accredited Valuers™, The fair value for all of the investment propertics is categorised
a5 a Level 3 fair value, Discounted Cash flow method is used 1o measure the fair value of these propertics uging
forecasted cashflows of these investment properties and related weighted average cost of Capital.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

[A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
14, EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

As at ] January
Investmoent during the year
Share In results of associates, net
Share of actuarial losses of associales recognized in OC]
Share of effective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedges
Dividend received during the year
Liguidation proceeds received during the year (note b)

As at 31 December

10.1 The investment in associates comprise the following as al reperting dale:

Inlemational Water
Crisinbotion
Company Limited
{notc a)

Saudi Water and
Envirgnmental
Services Company
{note b)

Saodi Allabr Talke
Company Limited
(nole ¢

xenmel 84, YVadue
(note 43

Green Dome
Holdings Limited
(hote €)

Principal activity

Water/waste works,
warer treatment and
lease of water
equipment

Electrical, water
and mechanical
works and related
operation and
mainienance

Contracling,
Cconstruction,
aperatton and
maintenance of
factorics and
warehouses

Trading, storage
and brokerage of
commodilies

[nvestment and
management of
COR PN es
providing logistic
scrvices

Country of
ncorporation

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

Prineipality of
Liechiznstein

United Arab
Emirates
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2n24 2023
RS SR
263,225,190 251,827,074
8,080,676 6,359,960
6,913,696 30,503,809
236,424 {303,360)
7,213,609 537,136
{32,315,103) (25,010,420
(1,289,690 -
252 064,802 263,225,190
Effective
skhareholding
percentage Carrying amount
2024 2023 2024 2023
SR SR
0% 50% 149,485,613 141,840,731
- 11.85% - 1,740,810
33.3% 33.3% 58,610,319 66,188,268
19% 19% 1,508,658 2,653,107
3167% 31.67% 41,460,212 50,802,274
252,064,802 263,225,19



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)
|A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2024

10, EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEE (continued)

The movement during the vear in the equity accounted investees is as fol lows:

31 Decemtber 2024

Asal ]l January
Investment during
the year
Share in resulis of
associates, net
Share of actuariul
gains of assuciates
recognived in OCI
Share of effective
portion of changes
in fair value of
cush flow hedges
Dividend received
during the year
Liquidalion
procecds received
{notc b}

As at 31 December

3t December 2023

Asat | January
Invesiment during
the vear
Share in results of
assnciates, nel
Share of actyarial
losses of associates
recopnized i OCI
Share of ellective
portien of changes
in fair value of
cash flow hedpes
Dividend received
during the ycar

Asat 31 December

fternational Sawudi Water
Water end  Saudi AfTabr

Diseribution  Environmentol Talke Green Dome

Company Searvices Company Xenmer 84, Holdings
Limited Company Limired Faduz Limited Total
SR Sk Sk SR SR AY
141,840,731 1,740,810 66,188,268 2,653,107 50,802,274 263,225,190
_ - - - 8,080,676 8,080,676
415347 {451,120} 23,100,406 1,261,801  {17,422,738) 6,913,696
5926 - 230,498 . - 236,424
7,213,609 - - - - 7.213.60%
- - (30,908,853) (1,406,250 - (32,315,103)
- (1,289,691 - - - (1,289,690
149,485,613 - 58,610,319 2,508,658 41,460,212 252,064,802
139,113,597 1,740,810 60,500,624 3,081,329 47,291,714 251,827,074
- - - - 6,359,960 6,355,960
10,244,170 - 22131011 978028 {2,849 40(0) 30,503,809
(574,172} - 70,812 - - (503,360}
57.126 - - - 57,136
{7.000,000) - (16,613,179 (1,406,250} - (25,019,429)
141,840,731 1,740,810 60,188,268 2,653,107 50,802,274 263,225,190
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SALIDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

i A Saudi Jaint Stock Company ) o
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 Diecember 2024

([18 EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEE (continued)

a} The Parent Company docs not have any control over management and operations ol International Water Disweibution

Company (IWL), accordingly, # is classificd as joint ventlure and accounted for as such.

bY  Saudi Water and Environmental Services Company (WESCO) was 49% owned by Kindasa Water Services Company (a

subsidiary). During the year WESCO has been liquidated and distributed net assets to their sharcholders.

¢} Saudi Al Jabr Talke Company Limited {s 33.34% owned by Sustained Infrastructure Holding Cempany (ithe Company),
accordingly, if is classitied as an associate.

d)  Xenmet 5A, Vaduz is 25% owned by Saudi Trade and Export Development Company 1imited (a subsidiary}, which is
6% owned by the Parenl Company. accordingly, it s classified as an associate.

g} The Parent Company does not have any direct control over management and operations of Green Dome Holdings Limited
{“Green Dome™) accordingly, it is ¢lassifed as an associate. During the period, upon capital call, additional SR 8 million

{3] December 2023: 8K 6.3 millton) was invested.

Summuarized finuncial information of equity accounted invesice companics is as follows:

Assaciares

31 December 2024

MNon-curent
assets

Current assets

Non-current
liabilities

Current ligbilities

MNet assets

Revenue

Profit for the year

(ther comprehensive
income

Tolal comprehensive
income

Share of OCI

Share of profit /
{logs}

Dividend received

International
Water Sandi AlJabr
Distribution Sunudi Water and Talke Green Dome
Compuny Environmental Company Xewmer 84, Holdings
Limited Services Company Limited Vadu; Lintited
SR SR SR SR SR
377,974,909 - 141,548,641
2,305,621 28,431,771
245,096,024 - 202,692,015 1,189,282 19,726,713
(44,889,083)
- (127,251,481} - (4,553,255)
(280,024, 498) - (64,545,871} (869,494} (11,028207)
258,157,352 - 152,043 304 2,625.409 32.577.022
777361495 23,888 327,312,909 860,478 163,272,894
850,694 370 62,914,747 1,304,390 1,799,280
14,427,217 - 691,561 - -
15,277,981 3,729 63,606,308 1,304,390 1,799,280
7,213,609 - 230,498 - -
425,347 (451,126) 23,100,406 1,261,801 (17,422,738)
- {1,289 6%0) (30,908.853) {1,406,250) -
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company |
NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (¢ontinued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

10. EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEE {continued)

Associares

31 December 2023

Non-current
assels

Currenl gssets

Non-gurrent
liabilities

Current labilities

Nel assels

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the
year

Cther comprehensive
mcome

Total comprehensive
income

Share of OCI

Share of profit/
{loss}

Dividend received

International

Water  Saudi Water and

Disiribution Environmental Al Jabr Talke Gireen Dome
Company Services Company Xenmot 84, Holdings
Lintited Company Limited Vaduz Limited
SR SR SR SR SR
339,939,731 - 59,830,558 6,020.419 116,200,537
279,913,598 3.976,878 207,779,606 6,143,779 099,280,424
(26,698,448} - (52,737 918) - {26,543,175)
{315,775,825) {43,829} (39,210,055) {1,950,788) {43,313,i46)
277,379,056 3,693,049 195,662,191 10,213,410 145,630,640
881,814,525 - 309,049,211 2,051,509 132,594,000
20,231,691 (2,889,695} 60,487,818 1,732,988 (8,820,000)

{6,125,164) 212,458 - .
14,102,527 {2,889,695) 60,700,276 1,732,988 (8,820,000)

(574,172) - 70,812 - .
10,244,170 . 22,131,011 7B 028 (2,849.400)

{7.000,000) - {16,613,179) (1,406,250) -

T —

e—

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCY)

Financial assets al Fair value through OCE comprise of equity invesiment in sharcs of Growth Gate Capital Corporation
B.5.C (a company based in Bahrain). As of the statement of financial posilion dale, management believes that the carryving
amouni of the invesiment approximates its fair value,

Moverment in investment is as follows:

At the beginning of the year

Changes in fair value

At the end of the vear

2024
SR

11,586,472
{3,037,200)

8,549 266

2023

SR

14,218,328
(2,631,856)

11,586,472
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY"}
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company §

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2024
12. GOODWILL

The Group recorded a goodwill of SR 9.3 million on acquisition of Kindasa Water Services Company (Kindasa), a
subsidiary of the Group. Subscquently, an impaimient of SR 0.5 million was recorded in previous pertods resulting in net

carrying value of SR 8.8 million (2023: SR 8.8 million).

The management reviews goodwill for impairment annually and when there is an indicator of impairment. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiary (i.e. cash gencrating unit). The receverable amount of
the cash generating unit has been determined based on a valuc in use caleulation, using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the senior management and the Board of Dircetors of Kindasa.

As at 31 Pecember 2024, the carrying amount of goodwill was revicwed and no impairment was fdentified.

13. INYENTORIES

Sparc parls
Raw malerials and chemicals
tuel, oil and desalinated water

Less: allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories

Movement in allowance for slow moving in obsolete inventories is as follows:

Al the beginning of the year
Charge lor the year

At the end of the year

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables, net (note 37)
Prepavments and other receivables
Margin deposits

Advances to suppliers
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2024 2023
SR SR
37,735,765 37,151,188
233,021 47,989
62,912 136,425
38,031,698 37,335,602
(15,659,357) (15,286,810)
212,372,341 22,048,792
2024 2023
SR SR
15,286,810 13,391,203
372,547 1,895,607
15,659,357 15,286,810
2024 2023
SR SR
173,573,417 124,157,411
124,901,949 62,772,950
31,305,700 12,968,501
1,476,706 14,373,640
331,257,772 214,272,502



SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

[A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

15, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2024 26023

RS SR

Cash on hand 318,749 299,366

Cash at barks 271,822,542 520,738,301

Murahaha deposits 731550437 645,367 989

Cash and bank balances 1,003,691,728 1,166,405,656
Less: Murabaha deposils with maturitics more than 90 days (note 15.2) {118,618,268) -

Cash and cash equivalent 585,073,460 1,166,405.656

15.1 Murabaha deposits are placed with local commercial banks. During the year, the Group eamed finance income of SR
32,R86,587 {2023: SR 23,744,961} at the rate of return ranging from 5.2% to 6.0% per annum (2023: (.0%% 10 5.0%
per anmam).

15.2 Murabaha deposits with original maturities greater than 40 days are presented as shart-term deposits, separalcly Irom
cash and cash equivalents.

16. SHARE CAFPITAL

2024 2023
SR SR
Ordinary share of Saudi Rivals 10 each * 816,000,000 216,000,000

As at 31 December 2024, the authorized and paid up capital of the Parent Company amounting to SR 816 million {2023:
SR §16 milfion) iz divided inte 81.6 million shares of SR 10 gach (31 December 2023 §1.6 million shares of SR 10 cach).

{*3 Tt ineludes 264,302 treasury shares (31 Decomber 2023: 264,502 treasury shares) acquired by the Company with a value
of SR 6,622,592,

Dividends

On 1 Ramadan 1445H {corresponding to 11 March 2024}, the Board of Direclors of the Company approved and paid
dividend amounting to SR 32.53 million (31 December 2023: SR 65.2 million) a1 SR 0.4 (2023: SR 0.8} per share.

17. STATUTORY RESERVE

The statutory reserve included in the consolidated financial siatements as of 31 December 2024, and 31 Iecember 2023

was required under the Parent Company’s previous by-laws, However, following amendiments to the Company's by-laws
during the vear ended 31 December 2023, the requirement to set aside a statutory reserve has been removed.
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{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company }

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

18. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
2024
SR

929,763,542

Nom -controlling interest

2023
SR

805,862,437

The following table summarizes the informaion relating to material significant Non-Controlling Interests
and RSPD beforc any intra group climinations:

{(“NCTT, REPD

RYFPD REPDT
2024 20023 2024 2023
SR SR SR Ry
Non-gcurrent assets 3.531,035,780 3,623,866,490 166,231,569 10,438 875
Currenl assels 639,509,732 690,287,371 191,273,813 246,419,625
Non-current liabilities 2,496,594,377  2,542,396,449 48,844,301 -
Current liabilities 677.326,721 692,237,034 59,657,678 18,336,945
Net asscls = 100% 997,614,414 1,079,520, 378 249,004,403 238,521,555
Carrving amount of NCT $32,288.016 684,181 469 157,715,230 159,406,545
Kevenue 1,061,073 424 1,3%95,745,950 44,617,061 -
Profit for the vear 143,116,044 81,582,504 (42,529.050)  (14,832.154)
Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI™} {633,851) (4,671,975 (7,788,353) {4,759)
Total comprehensive income {100%) 125,454,836 76,910,529 (50,317403)  (14,836,913)
Prafit for the vear allocated to NC1 86,169,681 55,861,572 (8,957407)  (11.964,078)
Total comprehensive income altocated to NCI 85,637,394 53,313,149 (1,842,294) -
19. OBLIGATION UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION AGREEMENT
Current and non-current portion ol obligation under service concession agreement is as follows:
2024 2023
SR SR
Balance at 31 December 1,705,053,355 1,574,996,302
Less: current portion (162,744,035 (168,953,693)
Non-current porlion {see note 8} 1,542,309,320 1,406,042,609
20. LONG-TERM LOANS
224 2023
SR SR

1ong-lerm lozns

l.ess: current portion

Mon-current portion
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1,231,149,375
(164,180,291)

1,343,613,540
(143,169,030)

1,067.969,084

1,198,444.510
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{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY"}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

0.

a)

b)

d)

€

f

LONG-TERM LOANS (continued)

Cni 3 December 2007, RSGT (a subsidiary of the Company) entered into an [jura arrangement with two local
commercial banks to obtain a loan of SR 1,271 million. The ljara facility was secured apainst the property and
cquipment / port concession rights of REGT. The loan was repayable In semi-annual instalments ending in December
2023, The loan carried special commission rale of SIBOR plus an agreed margin (see nole(c) below).

On 28 September 2016, RSGT entered into an [jara arrangement with swo local commercial banks Lo obtain a loan of
SR 260 million for expansion of its existing berths. This facility was alse secured against the porl cencession rights
of RSGT (note 8. 1), The lean was to be repaid in semi-annual instalments ending in December 2023, The loan carried
special commission rate of SIBOR plus an agreed margin (seec note (¢) below).

During the year ended 31 Decernber 2020, RSGT and the banks mutually agreed 10 amend the terms of the Joan
agreements above. These amendments, among others, included modification of the applicable rate from six months
SIBOR to three months SIBOR, lowered 1he agreed margin, modified the repayment frequency from biannual 1o
quarterly payment and extended the matority period from vear 2023 to 2030, The Jjara facilitics arc sccured against
property and equipment of the Group. The modifications of the terms were asscssed qualitatively and quantitively in
accordance with ITFRS & “Financial Instruments” and, as a result, the management concluded that the changes in terms
of agreernent resulted in modification under the requirements of 1FRS 9 “Finuncial Instruments™. Accordingly, the
modifications resulted in a day onc gain of SR 31.96 million recorded in the statement of profit of loss during the year
ctided 31 December 2020 on the effeetive date of the modification of the terms of the loans. Un-amortised balance of
the modification gain as at 31 December 2024 is of SR 10.4 million (2023: SR 14.09 million} which will be amortised
over the remaining periad of the ljara facility, using effective interest rate method.

The unamertised portion of the advance renlals and other fees paid (o the banks, are amortised over the remaining
period of the jara facilicy, using cffective interest rate approach,

During the vear ended 31 December 2020, RSGT obtained a facility with sanctioned limit of SR 750 million towards
its consolidation and expansion works which was fully drawn during prior period. RSGT paid an agreed commitment
fuc on the undrawn balance and an agreed profit payable al SIBOR plus 4 margin on the drawn balance. The
commilment fee paid has been deferred and amortised as part of effective imersst rale. The loan will be repaid in
quarterly instalments starting from 2024 and ending in 2033. The loan is secured against assets relating to the
consolidation and expansicn works.

The currernt and non-currens portion of the loans of RSGT as at the period end is as follows:

2024 2023
SR SR

RSGT

Long-term loans
Less: current portion (note below?

MNon-current portion

1,108,524,235
(145,394,577)

1,240,655,2%8
{140,437,002}

63,129,678 1.100,218.286

g)  During 2022, Tusdeer (a subsidiary of the Company) obtained a long-term loan facility with sanctioned limit of SR
290 million from a cotnmercial bank towards the construction of new warchouse. The loan camics commission at
commercial rates (SIBOR plus an agreed margin) and is repavable in quarterly instalments cornmencing 9 months
after the first dravdown,

2024 2023
SR SR

Tusdeer
Long-term loan 123,625,116 102,958,252
T.e85: current portion (18,785,714) (13,461,283}
L.ong-term postion 104,539,402 89,490,967

i)

All loans of the Group are denominated in Saudi Arabian Rival.

53
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21. EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company and its subsidiaries operate an approved unfunded employees™ end of service benefits scheme / plan for its
permanent employees, The movement in the defined bencefit obligation over the vear is as (ollows:

2024 20023
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 49,428,264 42 468,127
Included in srarement of prafit or loss

Current service cosi 7,556,250 0,106,350
Tnuerest cost ~ 2,734,285 2,443,335
10,290,535 8,549 885

Mncladed in statemens of other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain} / 1oss (408.438) 5,881,844
Benefits paid (4,153,759 (7,471,592)
Cost of termination benelils transiermed 112,416 -
At the end of the year 55,269,018 40 428 264

Aciparial assamptions
The definegd benefil plan is exposed to many actuarial risks, the most significant ot which are final salary risk, discount
interest rate Muctuation risk, lonpevity risk and inflation msk.

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

2024 2023

SR SK

Discount rate 2.00% 5.00%
Fuoture salary growth / expecied rate of salary increase 3% 3%
Price inflation rale 2% 2%
Retirement age 60 Years &0 years

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the discount rate by 100 basis poims ix as follows:

2024 2023
iR SR
Discount rate:
+1% increase {6,194,381) (5,855,808}
-1% {decrease) 4,194,381 5,855,808
Salary increasc rate:
+1% (increase) B.557,071 8,030,397
-1% decrease (7155807 (6.698,042)

The sensilivily analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit
obligation 4s a result of rcasonable changes in key assumptions oceurring al the end of the reporting period. ‘The sensitivity
analyses are based on a change in 4 significant assumption, kecping ull other assumptions censtanl. The sensitivily analvses
may notbe representitive of an actual change in the deiined benelit oblipation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation from one another.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obiigation is 11.2 years (31 December 2023 11.875 vears).
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21. EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

The following undiscounted payments are expecled 1o be made from the defined benefit plan in futore years:

2024 26023
SK SR
Within the next 12 monihs 6,942,579 5541348
Between 1 and 5 vears 22,718,168 22,819,002
More than 5 years 29,670,746 25,549,164
59,341,493 54,209,604

22, LONG-TERM PROYISIONS
2024 2023
AY ) SR
Provision for dismantling eost {note a) 2,099,088 1.940,035
{thers 96,761 108,160
1,195,849 2,048,195

a) T represents cost to remaove the plant pertaining to Kindasa, a subsidiary, from land leased from MaWANIL for a
period of 27 vears.

23, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets include land and office building, Sct ow below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized
and the movements during the period:

2024 2023
Office Land
Land building Tatal
R SR AR &K
Cost:
Al the heginning of the year 66,366,028 - 66,366,028 37,598,172
Additions during the year 1,153,549 3,482,409 4,635,958 8,767,856
Muodification during the year 18,349,596 - 18,349,596 -
35,369,173 3482400 89,351,582 66,366,028
Depreciation:
Accumulated depreciation {17.728,36%) - (17,728,369  {12,101,616)
Depreciation for the year (5,137,402) (495.276)  (5,632,678)  (5,026,753)
Accumulated depreciation {12,865,771) (495.276) (23,361,047} {17,728.364%)
MNet book value at end of the year 63,003,402 2,987,133 65,990,535 48,637,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the ycar ended 31 December 2024

23.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Set out helow are the carmying amounts of lease liahilitics and the movements doring the period:

At the beginning of the year:
Addition during the year
Muodification during the year
Interest charge for the vear (note 30}

Interest cost capatlised (capitalized in work in progress assets)

Payment of lease liabilities during the year

At the end of the year

Current jease liabilit
Non-current lease liability

The following are the amoents recognized in profit or loss:

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Interest charpe on lease liabilities
Rentals on short term lease

Total amount recognized in profit or loss

4. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT L1ABILITIES

Accrued labilities

Uneamed revenue {note 24.1)

Trade payables

Advances from customers

Retentinn money pavahle

Payable 1o Jeddah Islamic Port Autharity
Other payables

2624 2023
Ay SR
108,323,544 105,278,187
4,635,958 8,767,856
18,349,596 -
4,339,589 3,409,285
2,283,980 2,522,776
(14,897,678} (11,654,560}
123,034 989 108,323,544
11,112,819 12,872,045
111,922,170 95,451,499
123,034,989 108,323,544
2024 2023
SR SR
5,632,678 5,626,733
4,339 589 3,400,285
1,955,185 6,306,544
11,927,452 15,342,582
2024 2023
SR SR
259,804,508 198,223,155
9,004,954 2,163,305
90,767,070 125,564,968
12,550 501,550
11,546,370 20,534,578
19,509,827 27,439,363
56,514,783 50,821,925
447,154,062 425,648,844

24.1 Uncarned revenue mainly redates 10 rent received in advance for which revenue 1s recognized over time. Al of the
uncarned rent as at 31 December 2023 was recopnized as revenue during the vear ended 31 December 2024,
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28, REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

2024 2023
SR SR
Reverue from contract with custamers
Revenue from shipping and unloading services 1,03%,221,383 844,758,423
Revenue from Sale of potable water 96,206,114 92,746,720
Revenue from support services 51,981,782 53,821,869
1,187,409,279 991,327,012
Other revenue
Revenue from rentals $7,078,913 61,114,581
1,254,488,192 1,052,441.593
2624 2023
SR SR
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue at a peint in time 1,187,409,279 991,327,012
Revenue over time 67078913 61,114,581
1,254,488,192 1,092,441,5583

26,1 Shipping and unloading services arc provided bused on predefined rates. Sales of goods and services and rental
incomes are based on contractual agreed rates. The ennty satisfies its performance obligation upon delivery of the
goods and services 1o the customers and recognises revenue at conlracted rates adjusied for variable components.
All of the Group’s revenne generating activities are conducted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

26. CONSTRUCTION REVENUE AND CONSTRUCTION COST

2624 2023

SR SK

Construction revenuc 66,469,102 550,987,528
Cost of construction (66,469,102) (550,587,528

In accordance with IFRIC 12 “Service Cancession Arrangements”, the Group has recorded construction revenue of R 66.5
million (2023: SR 550.9 million) on construction of 2 container icrminal during the vear. The construction revenue
represents the fair value of the construction servicey provided in developing the container terminal. No margin has been
recognized, as in management’s opinien, the fair value of the construction services provided approximates io the
consineclion cost

27, DIRECT COSTS

2624 2623

SR SR

Cost of shipping and unloading services 491,154,775 4N7 682 931
Cost of salc of potable water 48,388,163 47,933,877
Cost of rentals and support services 73,591,6{M 58,690,402
613,134,538 514,307,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Eor the year ended 31 December 2024
28, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation (note 6 (iv)}
Advertising and marketing
Right-of-use assets depreciation
Lltilitics and telecommunication
Amorlizaion (note §.3)

(thers

29. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits

Legal and professional fecs

Depreciation {note & {iv))

Utilities, welecommunication and office supplies
Travelling

Amaortizatgon of Intangible asscis (note £.3)
Crthers

2024 2023
SR SK
5,575,114 6,534,002
364,923 1,499,914
1,174,140 1,055,796
991,453 1,232,622
427,956 564,068
- 6,854
1,805,061 i8,642
11,343,647 10,911,898
2624 2023
SR SR
150,974,536 120,477,103
32,659,768 22,552,173
15,724,221 §,880,695
5,875,710 10,448,061
5,299,459 4,238 669
3,554,952 1,468,048
35,260,522 35,922,122
249,349,168 203,986,871

Auditors' remuneration for the statulory audil and reviews ol the consolidated financial statemems for the year ended 31
Decernber 2024 amounts to SR 1.3 million (2023: SR 1.2 million). Fec for other assurance and non-assurance relaled

services to the Group amounts to SK 10,56 miltlon (2023: SR 0.1 milKon).

30. FINANCE COST

Financial charges on loans and bank lacilitics including amortization

of advance rentals

Finance charges on oblipation under serviee concession arranpement

Financial charges on lease liabilities (note 23}
Other financial charges
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2024 2023

SR SR
108,819,143 67,336,140
176,136,105 170,825,076
4,339,589 3,409,285
3,380,154 2,233,390
292,674,991 243 803,891
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(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2024
31, OTHER INCOME - NET

Reversal of provisions no longer required
Loss on disposal of property and equipmem
Management services tees and others

32. FAKAT AND INCOME TAX CHARGE, NET

Zakat and income tax charge {or the ycar comprise of!

Zakat charge for the year related 1o Saudi shareholders (nowe 32.1)
Income tax charge for the year related 10 non-Saudi shareholders (note 32.3)

32,1 Movement in provigion for zakat is as lollows:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Amounts paid during the vear

Al the end of the year

32.2 Movement in provision for current income tax is as follows:

At the beginning of the vear

Charge relating to cirent year
Amounis paid during the year

At the end of the year
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2024 2023
SR SR
4,734,240 3,514,495
183,074 54,834
4,787,083 20,171,761
9,704,397 23,751,090
2024 2023
SR SR
47,552,753 15,317,221
13,688,464 11,288,924
61,241,217 26,606,145
2024 2023
SR SR
15,936,832 13,315,613
47,552,753 15,317,221
(33,764,809) (12,696.002)
29,724,776 15,936,832
2024 2623
SR SR
6,419,615 562,992
13,336,837 11,597,752
(14,913,933} (5,741,129)
4,842,519 6,419,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31, ZAKAT ANDINCOME TAX CHARGE, NET (continued)

32.3 Major components of income tax are as follows:

2024 2023

SR SR

Current income tax {see nate 32.2) 13,336,837 11,547,752
Deferred income 1ax (see note 32.4) 351,627 (308,828)

13,688,464 11,288,924

[ncome tax charge relating to the non-Saudi shareholders of RSGT has been provided based on non-Saudi sharcholders’
share of adjusted net income for the vear at the rate of 20%.

32.4 Movement in deferred tax asset during the year is as follows:

2024 2023

SR Sk

At the beginning of the vear 6,057,112 5,748,284
Deferred tax eredit during the year charped to profit or loss (351627 308,828
At the end of the year 5,705,485 6,057,112

32.5 Zakat assessmenis status

Parent Company
The Parent Company has filed its Zakat returns up to year 2023 and assessments up to the year 2022 are finalized with the
Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority ("ZATCA™), ZATCA 1s yet to raisc the assessments for the vear 2023,

During the year, the Parent Company paid additional zakat 8% 17.4 million in respect of ussessments (or the vears ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, Manapement has recognised an additional provision of SR 9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 on the same basis.

Subsidiaries

Red Sea Gateway Yerminal Company Lintited and Red Seu Ports Development Company (“the Subsidiaries™)

RSGT has finalized its Zakat and income lax assessments with ZATCA up 0 2013 and has filed its Zakat and income tax
retums up to the year 2023, Tax / Zakat assessment lor the year 2014 is considered as finalized under statute of limitation,
During the year ended 31 December 2023, RSGT received assessments for the vears 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 which
were accepted and sentled under protest. Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements, ZATCA is vel to raise
the assessment for the years ftom 2019 through 2023,

RSP has filed i15 Zakat and fncome tax returns with ZATCA up to the year 2023, RSPLY has received an assessment for
the year 2018 which was accepled under protest. Assessment for the vears up 1o 2017 and prior vears are considered as
finalized under statute of limitation. Up 10 the date of these consoliduted financial statements, ZATCA is et to raisc
assessmenis for the years 2019 through 2023

Saudi Trade and Export Development Company Limited (“the subsidiary"}

The: subsidiary has finalized ils Zakat assessments with ZATCA up to 2016 and has filed its Zakat returns up 10 2023, Zakal
assessments for years 2017 and 2018 are considered as finalized under the statute of limitation, ZATCA i3 yet to raise the
assessments for the years from 2019 through 2023,
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY")

|A Saudi Joint Stock Company ) -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2024

32, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX {continued)
32.5 Zakat assesstnents staws {continued)
Subsidiaries {cemtinued)

Support Sevvices Operation Company Limited (“the subsidiary ")

The subsidiary has finalized s Zakat assessment with ZATCA for the years from 2007 up to 2008 and 2016 up 1o 2018,
During the year ended 31 December 2022, [SNAD received the Rinal assessment for vear 2020 which was accepted under
pratest, ISNALD has filed its Zakat returns up 1o 2023, Zakat assessments {rom years 2009 up 1o 2015 are considered as
finalized under the statute of limitation. ZATCA is vel to raise the assessments for years 2019 and 2021 through 2023,

Kindasa Water Service Company (“the subsidiary "}
The subsidiary has finalized its Zakal assessments with ZATCA up 10 2018 and has filed its Zakat relums up to 2023, Up
Lo the dute of these consolidaled financial statements, ZATCA is vet 1o raise the assessment for the years from 2018 to 2023,

33. EARNINGS /(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earmimgs / {loss) per share ("EPS") is calculated by dividing profit lor the period attributable 1o ordinary equity holders
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue outstanding during the period.

2824 2623
SR SR

{Loss) { profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Parent Company (741.,877) 71,203,083
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issuc 81,335,498 81,558,552
Basic and diloted (loss) f eamings per share (0.01) 0.87

The diluted camings / {loss) per shares is same as the basic earnings / (loss) per shares as the Group does not have any
dilutive instruments.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUTH INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™
[A Saudi Joint Stock Company i ]
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2024

34, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

b}  Short term loan due 1o related parties

2024 2021
SR SR
Short term loan due to related parties (note (i) - 148,843,578

{i)  During the year, the shareholders of RSGTI and RSPDI, the subsidiaries of the Group, have approved to issue
additional share capital in proportion to existing shareholdings. This includes shares issued to NCI apainst
cash received and short-term loan due to NCI amounting to SR 49.9 million and SR 148.8 million,
respectively.

¢} Key management personnel remuneration and compensation comprised of the following:

2624 2023

SR SR

Short term employee benefits 16,391,635 12,010,260
Post-employment benefits 397,035 623,061
16,988,670 12,633,321

Short term cmployec benefits of the Group's key management persommel include remuneration, salaries and
honuses.

d}  Board of Directors / Committee members remuneration and compensation comptised of the following:

2024 2023

SR SR

Meeting atlendance fees 550,000 1,185,000
Other shori-term remuncration &, 575,000 6,090,500
7,425,000 7,275,500

35, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies relating to Zakat and income tax are disclosed in note 32.

Ag ar 31 December 2024, the Group’s bankers have issued letters of guarantee amountimg to SR 171.2 million (31
Diecember 2023: SR 128.9 million) against which cash margin of SR 37.3 million (31 December 2023: SR 129
million) was deposited. Further, the Group’s bankers have issued letters of credit amouniing to SR 8.79 million
(2023 qil).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has commitments for capital work m progress amounting to SR 253 million
{31 December 2023: SR 274 million) mainly relating to new fogistic hub and park construction project, new
desalination plant construction and consolidaiion and expansion work on the container terminal.

36, BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The Group has the following main business segments:

Port development and operations

Waler desalination and distribution

Logistic parks and support services

Unallocated: Consists of investment activities and head office functions.

These sirategic business segments are located within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and Bangladesh. All revenues
are penerated within Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and Bangladesh.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cun;inued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

36, BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

The Company's top management reviews internal management reports of each strategic business unit at least
quarterly. Segment resuls that are reported to the top management inciude items dircetly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on
segment revenues, as included in the intemmal management reports that are reviewed by the top management. The
following tabie presents scgment information {assets, liabilitics, revenue and net income) for each of the buginess
sepments as at and for the vear ended 31 December:

3I December 2024

External revenue
Point in time
Over period of time

Tetal external revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue

Geographical markets

Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia

Bangladesh

Sepment revenoe

Cost of revenue
Inter-segment cost of
revenue

Sepment cost

Segment gross profit

Finance cost

Depreciation and
amortization

Profit atriburable to;

Shareholders of the
Parent Company

Non-conirolhng
mterests

Segment asseis

Additions to mon-
current asscis

Seement liabilities

Net assets

_Reporiable segments

FPart Logristic Water

development  parks and  desalination

and support anid
aperations services  distriburion Tofai  Unallocaied Total
(SR'066)  (SR'009) (SRH08) {SR808) {(SR'000) {SR008)
1,039,221 83,498 98,189 1,220,908 - 1,220,908
66,469 67,079 - 133,548 - 133,548
1,105,690 150,577 98,189 1,354,456 - 1,354,456
- (AL517 {1,983) {33,500) - {33,500)
1,105,690 119,060 96,206 1,320,954 - 1,324,956
1,061,073 119,060 96,206 1,276,339 - 1,276,339
44,617 - - 44,617 - 44,617
1,105,690 119,060 96,206 1,320,956 - 1,320,956
550,044 98,080 48,188 T08,5E2 - 705,512
(1,4207 {24,488) - (25,908) - {25,908}
557,624 73,592 48,388 679,604 - 679,604
548,066 45,468 47,818 641,352 - 641352
279,185 11,387 1,830 292,502 173 292,675
200,491 26,717 9,013 136,221 920 237,141
34,280 £.635 13,214 56,129 {56,871) {742)
59,004 7117 £,140 74,261 - Td,261
4,491,359 590,227 207,250 5,288,834 741,800 6,030,636
83138 38,229 2,930 131,297 2,737 134,034
3,273,205 249,751 61,156 3,584,112 38977 3,623,089
340,476 146,095 1,704,725 702,823 2,407 548

1,218,154
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company | - =
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCJAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

36. BUSINESS SEGMENTS {continued)

Reportable segments

Port Logistic Water
develupment  parks ard  desalination
31 December 2023 and support and
operations serviges  distribution Tl Unetlocated Toval
(SR'000) (SR '000) (SR '000) (SR 000} (SR '000) (SR 060}
External revenue
Point in time 844,758 95,625 94,277 1,034,660 . 1,034,660
Over periad of time 550,988 61,115 - 612,103 - 612,103
Total external revenue
1,395,746 156,740 94,277 1,646,763 - 1,646,763
Inter-segment revenuc - {41,804) {1.530) {43.334) . (43,334)
Segment revenuge 1,395,746 114,936 92,747 1,603,429 - 1,603,429
Geographical markets
Kingdom of Sandi
Arabiz 1,395,746 114,936 62,747 1,603,429 - 1,603,429
Bangladesh - - - - - -
Begment revenue 1,395,746 114936 92,747 1603429 - 1,603,429
Cost of revenue 960,201 95,685 47934 1,103,820 - 1,103,820
Inter-scgment cost of
Tevenue (1,530)  (36,99%) - (38,525) - (38,525)
Segment cost 258,671 58,690 47,934 1,065,295 - 1,065,295
Segment gross profit 437,075 56,240 44,813 538,134 - 538,134
Finance cost 237,716 4,991 1,097 243,304 - 243,804
Addition 1 non-current
assels 565,161 98,880 8. 156 672,197 104 $72,301
Depreciation and
amortization 166,857 14,224 9,722 190,803 350 191,153
Profit attributable to:
Sharcholders of the
Parenl Company 26,005 16,624 15,129 57,758 13,445 71,203
Non-controlling
interests 42,765 6,260 8,847 57872 - 57,872
Sepment assets 4,542,145 551,817 178.563 5,272,525 717,456 5,985,981
Segment liabilities 3,354,098 228,733 39,873 3,662,704 12,555 3,675,259
Net assets 1,148,047 323,084 138,690 1,609,821 704,901 2,314,722

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose if ta a vancty of financial risks: market sk {including interest rate risks, curtency risk
and price risk}, credit risk and hquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on rebust liquidity
ratagement as well as monitoring of various relevant market variables, thereby consistently seeking to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group may vse derivative financial instruments 1o
hedge certain risk exposures.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY

(formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wall fluctuate because of
changes in rnarket prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, eurrency risk and other price
risk, such as equity price risk and cormmodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include Jong-term
loans and long-term liabilities,

Tterest vate risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure o various risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing interest
rates on the (roup’s financial pusition and cash flows. The Group manages the interest rate risk hy regularly
menitoring the imerest rate profiles of its interest-bearing financial instruments.

Majority of the Group’s borrowings are at floating rate of interest and are subject to re-pricing on a regular basis.
Management regularly moniters the changes in inieresi rates. The Group enters mto Inlerest Rate Swaps (“IRS™)
(Derivative financial instruments) to manage ils exposure to interest rate risk. Such RS is designated as a Cash flow
hedge.

Increase / decrease in variable rate by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the equity and profit
before zakat and income tax for the year would have been SR 12.8 million (31 December 2023: SR 13.4 million).

Foreign currency risk

Forcign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 1o changes in foreign
cxchange rates. The Group's transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals and United States Dollar. Crther
transactions in furcign currencies are not material. The Group's management believes that their exposure to currency
risk 15 limited as 1JS Dollar is pegged to Saudi Riyal. Currency risk is managed on a regular basis and fluctuation
in the exchange rates are monitored on a continuous basis.

Other price risk
The Group does not hold quoted instruments, accordingly, not exposed te other price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligaticn and cause the other
party 10 incur & financial loss. To reduce exposore to credit risk, the Group has developed a formal approval process
whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management alse continuously monitors the credit exposure
towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the
risk, the Group has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on an extensive evaluation based on
customer profile and payment history.

The: Groups gross maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

224 2023
hY AR

Financial assets
Trade receivables, net 173,573,417 146,081,898
Due from related parties 15,445,125 12,950,389
Margin deposits 31,305,700 12,968,501
Cash at banks including term deposils 1,003,691,728 1,166,405,656
1.224,015,970 1.338,406,444

Customer credit rigk is managed by each business unit subjeet te the Group’s established policy, procedurcs and
control relating 1o customer credit risk management. As at 31 December 2024, 6 largest customers (31 December
2023 & largest customers) account for approximately 60% {31 December 2023: 77%) of outstanding trade
receivables.
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SUSTAINED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDING COMPANY
{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)

i A Saudi Joint Stock Company |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2024

37, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk {continued}

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date wsing a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, currerit conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The maximnm exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of cach
class of financial assets. Oulstanding customer receivables are repularly monitored. Some customers are also
secured, where possible, by way of cash promissory note, security deposit or advance, which are considered integral
part of 1rade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment,

Sct out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision

matrix:

31 December 2024

90-180 181-365

Current <00 days days days >1 year Tatal

SR SR SR SR SR SK

Exposure at default 62,622,785 88,198,075 20,804,568 3,291,002  19.640,247 194,556,677

% of expected credit loss 0.4% 1.2% 6.4% 64.2% 82.6% 10.8%

Expected credit lass 230,722 1,078,845 1,330,422 2,112,394 16,236,877 20,983,260

623924863 87119230 19474146 1,178,608 3,409,370 173,573,417

31 December 2023
181-365

Current <90 days 90180 days days >[ year Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR

Exposure at default 54,823,369 55,503,846 10,260,724 2,356,436 3,137,523 146,081,898

%% of expected credit loss 0.41% .94% 10.77% 27.73% 83.93% 15.01%

Expected credit loss 224329 521,558 1,104,94¢ 653,322 19,428,332 21,924 487

54509040 54982 28% 9,155,778 1,703,114 3,717,191 124,157 411

Movement of tmpajmment allowance against trade receivables is as foilows:

2024 2023
SR SR
At the beginning of the vear 21,924,487 18,658,706
Charge during the year 2,729,564 3,872,533
Written off during the year {3,670,791) {606,752)
At the end of the year 20,933,260 21,924,487

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the bank balances are held with banks with high credit ratings. All bank
accounts are held with banks within Kingdom of Saudi Arahia,

Financial position of related parties is stable. There were no past due or impaired receivables from related parties.
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{formerly, "SAUDI INDUSTRIAL SERVICES COMPANY™)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2024

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficully in in meeting its obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an
inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
on & regular basis that sufficient funds are available through committed credit facilities to meet any future
commitments as well as close monitoring of cash inflows and outflows from operations. The table below
summarises The matrity profile of the Group®s financial liabilities based on contractual payments:

Within 1 1ta5 More than 5
31 December 2024 year YeArs years Total
Sk SR SR 5R
Bank bormowings 246,357,254 923,354,975 437,373,626 1,607 ,085,855
Obligation under service
CONCESSion arrangement 162,744,035 739,891,161 4,813,205,713 5,715,840,909
Trade payables, accrued and
other liabilities 447,154,062 - - 447,154,062
Lease liabilities 12,198,156 33,566,180 175,847,075 221,611,411
868,453,507 1,696,812,316 5426,426,414 7,991,692,2%7
Within 1 e s More than 5
31 December 2023 Year Years yecars Tolal
SR SR SR SR
Bank borrowings 256,343,097 1.053,156,397 1,040,993 381 2,350,492 875

Obligation under service

concession arrangement 168,953 693 653,667,150 4,658, 698,024 5481,318,867
Trade payables, accrued and
other liabilities 425,648,844 . - 425,648,844
Short 1term loans due o
related parties 148,843,578 - - 148,843,578
Lease liabilities 11,154,560 40,966,032 145,325,700 197,446,292
1,010,943 772 1,747,789,579 5845017105 8,603.750,456

38, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be reeeived 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction te sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

# In the principal marke1 for the asset or liability; or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the assetl or lighility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best intersst. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes inlo account & market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in iis highest and best use or by sclling it to another market participant that would use the assel
in its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available te measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of
unobscrvable mputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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38. FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial stalements arc
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whele:

»  Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirsctly observable

*  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

If'the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability falls into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same ievel of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest input level that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group's financial asscts majorly comprise of trade and other receivables, due from related parties, shert term
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and investment in equity securities. Its financial liabilities consist of long-term
and short-term loans, obligation under service concession arrangements, lease liabilities, trade payables and other
liabilities. The fair values of the financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values as these
are either short-term in nature or carry interest at the market rates.

None of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are classified under level 1 and level 2. Investment in equity
sccurities measured at level 3. There is no transfer betwecen levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

3%, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium, statutory reserve
and retained earnimgs attributable co the equity holders of the Parent Company. The primary objective of the Group's
capital management s to maximize the shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital structare and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Gronp may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retum capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratie, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus debt.

2024 2023

Sk ) SR

Tonal lizbilities 3,623,088,569 3.675,258,714
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (885,073,460) {1,1606,405,656}
Net debt 2.738,015,109 2,508,853,058
Equity 2,407,547,817 2,314,722,581
Tetal capital 5,145,562,926 4, 823,575,639
Gearing ratio 53% 52%

40. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statcments were approved and authorised to issue by the Board of Directors on 11
Ramadan 14460 (corresponding to 11 March 2025).
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